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ALITY 'RE : FIMA 3

To the Sharsholders of
Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, 5.4

I We have audited the financial statements of Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, S.A. (the Bank) comprising
the balance sheet at 31 December 2007, and the related Income statement, cash flow slaement, statement of
thanges in cquity and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended. The preparation of these
financial statements is the responsibility of the Bank's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally
accepied auditing standards, which require examination, by means of sclective tests, of the evidence
supparting the financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting policies applied end
of the estimates made.

2. Asrequired by Spanish corporate and commercial law, for comparison purposes the Bank's directors present,
in addition to the figures for 2007 for each item in the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement,
statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, the figures for 2006, Our opinion refers
only to the financial statements for 2007. On 19 March 2007, we issued our auditors' report on the Bank’s
2006 financial statements, in which we expressed an unqualified opinion.

3. The Bank's operations are performed under the management of the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group,
giving rise 1o the balances and transactions with related companies that are indicated in the notes 1o the
financial statements. The accompanylng finuncial statements, which are presented in compliance with current
regulations, should be interpreted in this context.

4. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements for 2007 present fairly, in all material respects, the
equity and financlal position of the Bank at 31 December 2007, and the results of its operations, the changes
in its equity and its cash Mows for the year then ended, and contain the reguired information, sufficicnt for
their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with the accounting principles and standards
confained in Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, which were applied on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year.

3. The accompanying directors’ report for 2007 contming the explanations which the directors consider
appropriate sboul the Bank's situation, the evolution of its business and other matters, but is not an integral
part of the financial slatements. We have checked that the sccounting information in the directors’ report is
consisient with that contained in the financial statements for 2007, Our work as suditors was confined to
checking the direstors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not inclade o review of any information
other than that drawn from the Bank's accounting records.

DELOITTE, 5.1,
Registered in ROAC under no, 30692

Francisco Celma
21 February Z008
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BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 {Notes 1 to 3)

- Thousands of Euros -

ASEETS

2006

CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BAMNKS (hote &)
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING (Mofe )
Loans and advances to credil instilulions
Money market operations through counterparties
Loans and advances fo customers
Dakd instruments
Other equity instruments
Trading derivatives
Marmorandum ftem: Leansad or advanced as collaleral
COTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Loans and advances to credit insfitutions
Money marke! operations through counterparties
Loans and advances 1o customers
Dbt instrements
Cither equily instruments
Memaorandum item: Loaned or advanced as collateral
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Mate 7)
Dbt insiraments
Other equity instruments
Memaorandum item: Loansd or advanced as collateral
[LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Mote B)

Loans and advances to credit instiulions

Monay market operations through counterparties

Loans and advances fo cusiomers

Debt insiruments

Other financial assels

Mamarandum ibem: Loanad or advanced as collatersl
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Memorandum iem; Loaned or advanced as collaleral
CHAMGES IM THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGEDR ITEMS IN PORTFOLIC HEDGES OF
INTEREST RATE RISK
HEDGING DERIVATIVES (Note 8)
NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Loans and advances fo credit institutions

Loans and advances o customars

Debt instrumenis

Equily inslruments

Tangitle assats

Dther asgets

2233

20,2

2,678,827

28182

2 87TR.A2T

26192

301,163

18.3

10,018,655

B.4B5.C

2227878

41,2

=

7781877

B423.1

lhl

164.4

(") Presented for comparison purposes anly,



BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2007

Trangtalion of & repor onginaly issved i Spaniah based on owrwork parfarmad it scoovdancs willh gerarsly accesied audifing
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European Union (Motes 1.2 and 40} I e evenl of & discrepancy, the Spanich-languege version pravails.



BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 {Notes 1 to 3)

- Thousands of Euros -

- Thousands of Euros -
ABILITIES AND EQUITY 2007 2008 ()
LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING (Note 6) 47,524 15,695
Deposits from credit instibutions - =
Money market aperations through counterparties - -
Cusiomer deposite 5
Debt cariificates (including bonds) = ;
Trading derivatives 47 524 15,885
Short posifions . £
OTHER FIMAMCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS -
Deposits from credit institufions .
Customer daposits = =
Dabt cerificales (including bonds) L E
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR WALUE THROUGH EQUITY -
Deposits from credit Institutions - =
Customer deposils . -
Debt certificates (including bonds) - 2
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST (Note 14) 12,469, 314 10,893 661
Deposits from central banks 4. 186,355) 1,800,738
Deposits from credit instilulions 258,120 579,208|
Monay market operalions through counterparties - R .
Cusiomer deposils 2019027 2508530
Debt certificates (including bonds) 5948638 5965217
Subordinated liabiities 4 -
DHiver nancial liabilities 58,174 41,081
CHAMGES IN THE FAIR WALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF
INTEREST RATE RISK ] 2
HEDGING DERIVATIVES (Mote 5} 284, 172 338 070
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CLUIRREMNT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE = =
Customer depogils
Dther Eabilifies B ;
PROVISIONS (Mole 15) 27,053 29,950
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 23,141 27,248
Provesions for laxes - .
Provisions for conlingent kabilfies and commitmantis 143 138
Other provisions 3,788 2 455
TAX LIABILITIES (Mole 21) - 3,841
Currest = 3,841
Deferred - -
CRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME (Note 12) G4 1,362
OTHER LIABILITIES {MNote 13) 4l 223
EQUITY HAVING THE SUBSTANCE OF A FINANCIAL LIABILITY i =512
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,798,671 11,283,022

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.



!IWESTMEHTE {Mate 10)

Agsociates

Jodnthy contrefled entilies

Subsidiaries

INSURAMCE CONTRACTS LINKED TO PENSIONS (Mote 16}
TANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 11)

For own use

Invesimant propary

Other assets leased oul under an cperating lease
Memarandum item: Acquired under a finance lease
[[NTARGIBLE ASSETS

(el

Other intangible assets

TAX ASSETS (Mote 21)

Current

Deferred

PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME (Node 12)
OTHER ASSETS [Mola 13)

TOTAL ASBETS

2007 2006 |
. 1.5

- 3

- 1,5

5711 8,3
25,143 25,61
10,638| 10,0

14, 506] 14,5¢
18.211 21,71
1B.211 21710
255 a

a3 R

13,087 487 11,5833

) Presented for comparison puarposes only.

The accempanying Motes 1 1o 40 are an integral pari
of the bafance shesf at 31 Doecembor 2007



EI:JLII!T":"

2007 2006 (*
VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS (7.147) (6,877
Available-for-sale linancial assets {7,147} {6877
Financial |Eabilities at fair value through equily .
Cash flow hadges g
Hedges of nét invesiments in foreign operations 2
Exchange diffarences <
Mon-current assets held for sale -
OWHN FUNDS (Note 17) 295,863 287 20t
Capital or endowment fund (Maole 18) 151,043 151,042
Issued 151,043 157,04!
Unpaid and uncalled {-) -
Share premium (Note 19) 10,662 10,662
Reservas (Maote 20) Bd 582 84,582
Accumulated resernvas (losses) 84 582 a4 582
Retained eamings 5 s
Other equity instruments =
Equity componaent of compound financial ingtrumaents -
Dither
Less: Treagury shares - -
Prodit for the year | 40.676] 40,922
Less: Dividends and remurneration - .
TOTAL EQUITY (Mate 17) 288.816 280,332
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 13,067.487| 11,583,354
[MEMORANDUM ITEMS
COMNTINGENT LIABILITIES (Mote 24} 683,557 685,578
Financial guarantees 683,567 686,578
Assets earmarked for third-party obligations - -
Other contingent fiabilities . “im
CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS (Mote 24) 1,047,442 80,530
Drawable by third parties 1,047 442 B90,530
L Other commibments $ :

{*) Presented for comparison purposes anly.

The accompanying Notes 110 40 ane an integral part
of the balance sheet at 31 December 2007,



BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, 5.A.

INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 (Notes 1 to 3)

- Thousands of Euros -

Trawstatian of financial statemonts oniginally igseed i Spsalsh snd preparad in accorfance wilh IFRSs, as adopind by M Evropedn Union (Nodos 1
= avd
4. i e @venl of o discrnpancy, ine Spamizh-anguage varsion pravails,

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME {Note 24)
INTEREST EXPENSE AND SIMILAR CHARGES (Mate 30)
Return on equity having the substance of a financial liability
Other
INCOME FROM EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
Invesimeanis in associales
Invesimenis in joinfly controlled entities
Investments in subsidiares
Oiher equily instruments
MET INTEREST INCOME
FEE AND COMMISSION INMCOME (Mole 31)
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE (Note 32)
GAINSILOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (NET) (Mote 33}
Hald for trading
Other financial instruments at fair value through prafit or loss
Available-for-sale fimancesl assels
Loans and receivabiles
Other
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES (NET)
GROSS INCOME
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
PERSONMEL EXPENSES (Mole 34)
OTHER ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Mote 35)
CEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATIOMN
Tangible assels (Mote 11)
Intangible assata
DOTHER DPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPERATING INCOME
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES [MET)
Available-for-sale financial asaets
Loans and receivables (Mole 8)
Hald-lo-maturity invesiments
Mon-current asssts held for sale
Irvesiments (MNote 10)
Targible assets
Goodwill
Cther intangible assels
Other assels
PROVISIONS (NET) (Mote 15)
OTHER GAINS (Mote 38)
Gaing on disposal of tangible assets
Gaing on disposal of investmenis
Civar
OTHER LOSSES (Nole 35)
Losses on disposal of langible assels
Losses on disposal of invesimaenis
CHbaer
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
INCOME TAX (MNote 21)
PROFIT FROM ORDIMNARY ACTIVITIES
PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (MET)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

=

2007 2006 (*} |
492,887 390,842 |
(421.141) |  (315,789)
(421,141} | {316.788)
71,846 ?s,m:
1,018 1,774
(193} (218)
243 1,304
1,620 3,635
1,377 {:,331‘;
S —
73,817 77,910
1.371 1,343
{610} (2,366}
{2,111) {2,337)
{707} 721]
{TO7) (F21)
(30} (47)
71,730 73,782
1470 | (3.417)
1,934 2.353;
(455) {5,780}
{1.486) (2,358
1,544 :
1,644 g
- (626}
{626)
73,387 67,380
(23,711) (25,458)
49,676 40,922
“‘Bﬂ; m,ﬂzl;

{*) Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 40 are an inegral part
of the income statemant for the year endad 31 Dacembear 2007,



Transiation of Nnancial slafements orfpinaily lesped fn

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

and preparod #n accordance with IFRES, as mhpﬂdhrmﬁrum Unaior
{Wotes 1.2 and 401 fn fho avenf af & gVscrepancy, (e S08M0 -0 QN Ge Varaion prevairs

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 {Notes 1 to 3)

= Thousands of Euros —

HET INCOME RECOGMISED DIRECTLY IN EQLITY
Aveilable-for-sake financial assets

Revaluaiion gaina/losses

Amounds transfarred fo income statemend

Income fax

Rectassilicalions
Financial liabilities al fair value through sguily

Revaluaiion geinallosses
Amounts fransfarmed o income statement
Income tax
Reclassillcafions
Cash flow hedges
Revaluafion gainslosses
Amounts fransferred (o income statarment
Armounis ransferred at the inifial camying amount of hadged lems
Income tax
Reciassiflcations
Hedpges of net imesiments in foreign aperations
Revaluation gains/lossas
Amounts transferred to income statarnan
I 2o
Reclassifications
Exchange differances
Transkaiion gains/osses
Amounts ransfemsed o income slalement
Income tax
Reclassificatons
Mon-cummeni assets heid for sale
Revaluation gains
Amounts transfened o ncome statement
Incame L
Reclassifications
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Published profit for the year
Adjustments due to changes in accounting policy
Adjusimants made o cormes] &g
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

MEMORANDUM ITEMS: EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS ALLOCABLE TO PRIOR
PERIODS

Effect of changes in accounting policies
Cran funeds
Valualion adpusiments
Effects of ermors
O funds
‘Yaluation adjusiments

2007 | 2006
(270) |  {10,408)
(2T (10,404}

801 | (14,662)

(1,377) (588}

116 i Hﬁ-

49,676 | 40,922

49676 | 40,022

49,406 | 30,518

{*} Presented for comparigon purposes only.
The accompanying Mofes 1 lo 40 are an infogral part

of the statermant of changes in equily Tor the year anded 31 Decembsar 2007



Translation of firancisd slatements oiginally isswad in Spanish and prepared in sccordance with IFRSs, as adogled by e Ewrapean
LUinan (Noles 1.2 and 40j). I dha event of & discrapancy, lhe Spanish-anguage versian prevails,

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006 (Notes 1 to 3)

= Thousands of Euros -

2007 20086 |
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES s 5
Profit for the year 48,678 40,822
Adfusiments fo profit; 25 145 24,680
Depreciation of langible assets (+) 707 721 |
Amorisation of intangible asseis (+) i -
Impairment losses (nef) (+1-) :114?'93 3,417
Provisions {net) (+-) 1466 | 2,359
Gains/Losses on disposal of langlble assels (+-) A ‘
Gaing/Losses on disposal of mvesimants [+£) . 4
Taxes (+-) 23,711 25,458
Other non-monetary lems (+-) ™40 1,726
Adjusted profit 74,821 75,602
Het increase/decrease in operating assets (1,648,992} 578,584
Financial assets held for frading {27.134) LLEEJ
Loans and advances to cradit instilufions -
Woney market oparations through cownterpariies -
Loans and advances to cusiomers - =y
Debt Instruments = -
Diher equity instrumeants -
Trading derivatives (27,134) (2,669)
Mher financial assets af falr valus through profit or loss < -
Loans and advances to credit mslifufions - -
Money market operations through countenparties -
Loans and advances bo cusiomers =
Debt instruments - -
CHher equily instruments - -
Swailable-for-sale financial asseats {184, 206) 353,014
Debt instruments {184,2086) 353,014
CHner equily insbrumenis - =
Loans and receivablas __(1,542,081) arin
Loans and advances to credit institulions 2,183 456) oEE27
Money market operalions threugh counterparties . -
Loans and advances 1o cuslonmers B40,845 249,470
Debt instrumants . -
Ciher financial assels 532 (525)
Dther operaling assels 104,428 {108, 533)
Mat increase/decrease in operating liabilities 1,490,475 (T40,0:31)
Financial Eabililies held for irading 31,829 (5.285)
Depcails from credit institutions - -
Money marke! operalions through counterparies o, =
Customer deposils i
Diabl cerificates (incleding bonds)
Trading derivatives 31,629 {6.285)
Short positions :
Other financial liabiilies at fair value through profit or loss . =
Deposils from credit institutions - . =
Cuslomer deposils - T
Debt cerificaies [including bonds) 2

{*) Presented for comparisan purposes onby.




Financial lkabilities at fair value through equity
Deposits from cradil inslitutions
Cusiomer deposils
Dbt cenificates {including bonds)
Financial llabilifes measured a1 amorised cost
Deposits from central banks
Deposils from credit instiutions
Money markel operations through counlerparties
Customer deposits
Debi cerficates (including bondsa)
Cithar financial lisbdiies
Mher operating liabllities
Total net cash flows from operating activities (1)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments {-j
Subsidiaries, joinlly controlled entities and associales
Tangible assels
Intangible assais
Held-to-maiurity investmaenis
Other financial assels
CHbeer agsets

2007

2006 (7) |

1,671,480

(599,286)

2,380,000
(319, 414)

_{100,000)

(679,390)

(481,608)

178,715

(21,711)

(106,575)

14,193

954

(112.610)

(105.450) |

(83,692)

155,845)

[164)

{5,012) |

{5,000)

(164}

{12) |

=

Divestments (+)

Subsidiarins, jointly controlled entities and associates

Tangible assels

Intangible assats

Halg-lo-maturity invesimenis

Diher financial assets

Diher assels
Total net cash flows from Investing activities (2}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IssuanceFedemption of capital or endowmeant fund (+1-)
Acguisition of cwn equily instruments (-}
Disposal of own equity instruments (+)
Issuance/Fedemplion of non-voling equily units (+-)

1,478

1478

Issuance/Redemption of other equity Instruments (+1<)

ls;uanwﬂudmpﬁun of equity having the substance of a fnancial liability
(=)

Issuance/Fedamplion of subordinated Fabilities (+/-)

lssuance’Redomption of other long-term liabilities (+&)
Dividendsfinterast paid {-)
Other lems refated to financing activities (+£-)
Total net cash flows from financing activities (3)
Effect of exchange rales changes on cash and cash equivalents (4)
MET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
[1+2+3+4)

Cash and cash oguivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents al end of year

{40,822)

{50,393}

lﬂuﬂﬂi

(50,383)

=

(123,300)

{111,260}

223,373

334,623

1“.“?3

223,373

("} Presented for comparison purposss onky

The accompanying Motes 1 to 40 are an integral part
of the cash Bow statemant for the year anded 31 Decernber

2007,



Tranglatian of Arancial statermants onginally (sswed in Spanish end preparad in accomance with IFRSE, as adoplad by lhs Edwropean
Uinigyt (Modes 1.2 and 400 In the evend of o discrapancy, e Spamish-lamgume version proveds,

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2007

, Intro n, basis of presentation of the financial statements and ar information
1.1, Introduction

Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, 5.A. ("the Bank’) 1z & private-taw entily, incorporaled on 23 July 1925, subject to the
rules and regulations applicable to banks operating in Spain and I part of the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group
{the "BEVA Group™.

The bylaws and other public information on the Bank can be consulted alits regisiered office (Plaza de Sanla de Barbara
n® 2, Madrid).

The financial stalements must be interpreted within the context of the Group within which the Bank carries on ils
business aclivibes,

The Bank's financial statemants for 2008 were approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Mesating of the Bank
on 28 May 2007, The 2007 financal slatements of the bank have nod yel been approved by its shamholders at tha
Annual General Meeling, However, the Bank™s Board of Directors considars that the aforementoned financial statements
will be approved without any changes.

The Bank's business activilles are conducied as part of the Instiulional business of the BEVA Group focus maindy on lhe
financing of Spanish public-secior entities and iheir dependant agencies or entities, throwgh 55 branch offices located In
the main cies of the autcnomous communilies in Spain and included in BEVA's commercial nebsork.

1.2. Basis of presentation of the financial statemenis

On 22 December 2004, the Bank of Spain issued Circular 472004 on Public and Confidential Fimancial Heporting Rules
and Forneals.

The purpose of this new accounting Circular is to modify the accounding system of Spanish credit inetiutions by adapiing
it 1o the nesw accounting emaranment acising from the adoplion by the European Union, through several EC Regulations,
of the Indernational Financial Reporting Standards ("ELU- IFRSs™) wnder Regulation (EC) no. 18068/2002 of he Eurcpean
Parliament and of the Council of 1% July 2002 on the application of Internatonal Accouniing Standands,

The Bank's financial statements of 2007 wera prepared by the Bank's diractors {at the Board Mesting on February 20,
2008) on the basiz of the accounting records kept by the Bank In accordance with Bank of Spain Circular 412004,
regresenting faidy the bank's equity and fimanclal posiion al December 31, 2007, and the resulis of ils operalions, the
chamnges in equity and the cash flows in 2007,

All accounting policies and measurement bases with @ matesial effect on the financial stataments were appsied in their
praparation.

1.3. Comparative information

The information relaling 1o 2006 contained in these notes 1o the financial statements is presented, solely for comparison
purposas, with informalion relating lo 2007,

1.4. Responsibility for the information and for the estimates made

The information in thege financial slalemenis s the responsibility of the Bank's dineclors. In preparing these financial
slalements estimates were occasionally made by the Bank in order to guantify certain of Ihe assels, liabdfites, incoms,
wrpansas and commilments reported hergin. Thesa estimatas ralate mainly to the following:



The impairment losses on cerlain assefs,

The assumplions used in the actuanal calculation of the post-amployment benefit liabilities and commitments,
The useful life of tangible assats.

The fair value of cerain unguoted assels.

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December 2007 on the events
analysed, events hat might take place in the fulure might maeke it necessary fo change these estimates (upwards or
dowrrwards) In coming years.,

1.5. Environmental impact

At 31 December 2007 the Bank’s financial statements did nod discloss any item thal should be inclsded in he
environmental information document envisaged in fhe related Ministry of the Sconomy Order dated 8 Ociober 2001

1.6. Report on the activity of the Customer Care Department and the Customer Ombudsman

As required by the Ministry of Economy Order ECOITIAR2004, of 11 March 2004, on customer care
departments and services and customer ombudsmen at financial institutions and since the Bank belongs to
the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group, the Bank adhered to the BBVA's Rules on Customer Care
Department and Customer Ombudsman and appointed as Customer Ombudsman the individual appointed
bv BBVA at any given time.

1.7. Minimum capital requirements

Law 131982, of 1 June, and Bank of Spain Circular 511993 and subsequeént amendments thereto regulate (he minimum
capilal requiremenis for Spanish credit inslitutions — both as individisal entities and as consoldaled groups — angd Ihe
criteria for calculating the capital ratio.

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Bank's eligible capital exceadad the minimum required under the aforemeniioned
regulations.

2. Accounting policies and measurement

The accouniing policies and measurement bases applied in preparing e Bank's financial statements were as folows:
ajMeasurement bases

The critena for the valuation of assets and labiflies in the accompanying balance sheels were as follows:

- Falr Valug

The fair value of an assel or lkabiity on a goven date s the amourt for which i could be exchanged or seftled,
rospeclively, belween hwo Enowiledgeable, willing parlies in an arm's length fransaction. The most objective and
common reference for the fair value of an asset or a liability is the price that would be paid for ® on an organised,
fransparent and desp market "guoted price” or "marked price”).

If thera is no markel price for & given asset or lability, its Tair value is estimated an fhe basis of the price established in
recent Iransactions Involving similar instrumeants and, In the absence fhereof, by using mathematical measurement
models sufficienily fried an trusted by ihe inlernational financlal community, Such estimates would take into
consideration the specific features of the a=sed or sbility, Howsver, the limitalions mherent to the measurement modals
developed and the possible inaccuracies of the assumplions reguired by these models may signify that the fair value of
an assel or liabifity could be exchanged or seltked on the dale of ils measurement.

- Amartized Cost

Amortized cost is undersiood fo be fhe acquisition cost of a financial asset or lability minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the systematic amorization (as reflected in the noome statements) of any diffesence betwean the inltial cost and
e malunty amount.

In the case of imancial assels, amorlized cost also Includes any value adjusimants for impairment

In the cese of financial insiruments, the systematc amortization reflectad in the income siaiement is recognized by
effective interes! rate method. The effective inleres! rale |5 the discount rale that exactly equates the carrying amound of
a financial instrument to &l ks estimated cash flows of all kids during its residual [e. For fieed rate financial instruments,
the affective interest rate coincides with the condractual interest fale ostablished on fhe acquisition dale plus, where
applicabde, the fees and commissions which, because of thelr nature, can be equaled with a rate of interest. |n the casze
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af l]uﬂhg rate financial instrurmants, the effective interest coincides with the rate of redusn prevaiing in all connecfions
uniil the date on which the reference inlerest rale is 1o be revised for the first time.

- Acquisition Cost Adjusted

Acquisition cost adjusted means the transacticn cos! for the adquisition of assets adjusted, where appropriate, by any
rélatad impairmeant foss

b) Financial instruments
b.1) Classification
Financial instruments are classified in the accompanying financial stalements in the following categories:

- Financial assets | liabilities held for trading: These headings in the accompanying balance sheet include the
financial assets and Eabilities acquired with the intention of generating a profit from short = lerm fuctuations in their
prices or from differences betwean their purchase an sake prices,

These headings also include financial derivatives not considered to qualify for hedoge accoumting.

- Available-for-sale financial assets: hese include debt securities nol classified as “held-to-maturity investments® or
as “financial assets at falr value through profil or loss”, and equity Instruments have not been classified es “held for
trading” or as “other financial assets & fair value through profit or loss®

- Loans and receivables: this heading relates to the financing granted to third parties, classified on the basis of the
nature thereod, irrespective of the nature of the borrower and the form of financing granted, and includes finance leases
in which tha Bank act as lessars,

The bank generally intends to hold the loans and credits granted by him until 1heir final maturily; therefore, they are
presented in the balance sheel at thoir amortized cost (which includes any corrections required to reflect the estimated
lasses an thair recovery),

- Financial liabilities at amortized cost: this heading includes, imespective of their instrumentation and maturity, the
financial liabilties not included in any other heading in the balance sheel which relate to the typical deposit-taking
activilizs camied on by financial instifulions.

- Hedging derivatives: inclede financial derivatives designated as hedging ilems. All the accounting hedges performed
by the Bank are fair value hedges, which hedge changes in the fair value of asseis and labilities arising from
fluctuations in the interas! rate and/or exchange rates designated as the hedged risk.

.2} Measurement of financial Instruments and recognition of changes arising from measuremeant

All lingncial instruments are inlially recognized at fair value which, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, shall be
The fransaclion phice. These imstrumenis will subsequently be measwred on the basis of their classification. The
recognition of changes arising subsequent io the initial recognition is described balow,

The change produced during the year ansing from the accrual of interest and similar tems are recorded under tha
headings “interest and Similar Income” or "Inferes! Expense and Similar Charges®, as appropriate, In the income
staternent of this period. The dividend accrued in the penod are recorded under the heading “Income from equity
ingtmuments” in the Income stalemant.

The changes in the measurements after the initial recognition, for reasons other than those of the preceding paragraph,
are described below according to the categories of financial assets an Eabllities:

= "Financial asseis held for trading™
Assels and liabilities recognized in these headings in the accompanying balance sheets are valued al fair vaiue
Changes arising from the valualion to fair value (gains or losses) are recognized under the heading “Gains or losses on

financial assets and liabilities (nef)” in the accompanying income siatemants, On the other hand |, Valuation adjustments
by changes in foreign exchange rales are recognized under heading “Exchange Differences (nef)” in the income
statemantls.

The tair valee of the standard financial derivatives included in the held for trading portfodios is equal to their daily quoted
price. If, under exceptional circumstances, their quoted price cannot be established on a given dale, these derivatives
are measured using methods similar to those used to measure over-he-counter ("OTC") darivalives.
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The fair value of OTC derivafives is equal to the sum of the fulure cash flows arlsing from the instrument, discounted
the measurement dale ("present value™ or “theoratical close®); these derivatives are measured using methods
recognized by the financial markets, including the nel presant value (NPV) method and option price calcukalion
rmodels,

Financial derivalives thal have as their underlying equily instruments, whose fair value cannod be determined in a
sufficiently objective manner and era saftted by delivery of those Instruments, are measured at cost.

- “Avallable-for-Sale Financial Assets”
Assets and lkabiMies recognized in these headings in the accompanying balance shaeis are valusd at fair value

Changes arising from the valuation to fair value (gains or losses) are recognized temporally, net amount, under the
heading "Valuation Adjusiments — Available-for Sale Financial Asseis” in the accompanying balance sheats.

Waluabon adjusiments arising from “Available-for-Sale Financial Assets — Other equity mstrumenis” by changes in
foreign exchange rates are recognized temporarily under heading *Valuation Adjustmenis — Exchange Differences” in
the balance statements. Valuations adjustments arising from “Available-for-Sale Financial Assets — Debt securilles” by
changes in foreign exchange rates are recognized under the heading “Exchange Differences (nef)” in the income
stataments,

The amounis recognized in the heading "Valuation Adjusiment - Avallable-for-Sale Financial Assets™ remain in the
equity unlil the assal is derecognized from ihe balance sheet, at which lime those amounts are recognized undar the
heading "Gains or logses on financial assets and liabiities (nel)” in the income stataments,

Cn the other hand, the impairment fosses (net) in the avalable-tor-sale financial assats during the period are recognized
undar the heading “lmpairment lpsses (net) — Avallable-for-sale inanclal assels” in he income statemonts.

- "Held-fo-maturity investments” and "Financlal labilities at amortised cost™

Azzats and Habilities recognized In these headings in the accompanying balance sheeis are measured af "amorized
cosl” using the “effective interast rate” method,

Impairment ksses (nef} anging in e period are recognized under the heading “lmpairmeant losses (net) — Loans and
receivables” or "Impairment losses [net) = Held-to-malurily [mvesiments” in the income stalaments.

= "Hodging derivatives"”

The asseis and liabilities recognised under thess Hems in the accompanying balance shesls are measurad ai fair value.

The changes arising in the measurement of the financial instruments designated as hedged items subsaquent to the
designalion of the hedge and the financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting are recognised direclly under
"Gains/Losses on Financial Assets and Liabies (Nef)® in the incomea statermeanl.

Other financial instruments
In refation 1o the aforementioned general criteria, we must highlight the following exceptions:

«  Egquily instruments whose fair value cannol ba determined in a sufficiently objective manner and financial
derivatives thal have instruments as their underlying and are sellled by dellvery of those instruments ane
measurad al acquasition cost adjusted, where approprigle, by any related impaiment loss,

= alualion adjesimends arising on non-current assels held for sale and liabllities associaled with them ane
recognized wilh a balancing enbry under heading “Valuation Adjusiments — Won-Current Aszets Held for
Sale” of ihe belance sheat.

b.3) Impairment financial assels
Definition

A financial asszel is considered 1o be impaied - and therabore its carmying amount is adjusted to reflect the effect of iz
impairment - when there i objective evidence that evenis have occurrad which

= |n the case of debl insiruments (loans and debt securities), give rise fo 8 negative impact on the fulure cash
fliows that were estimated al the time tha lransaction was arranged,

s Inthe case of equily Instrumenis, mean that the carrying armount of thess instruments cannot be recoverad.

12



As a general nis, the carrying amount of impaired financial instrumends is adjssted with a charge o the income
statemant for the year in which the impairmeni becomes known, and the recovenes of previously recognized impairmeni
losses are recognized in the income statemeant for the year in which the impairment is reversad or recuced, with the

axception that any recovery of previously recognized through profit or loss bul recognized under tha heading “Valuation
Adjustments — Available for sale Financial Assats® in the balance sheat.

Balances are considered to be smpaired, and accnual of the intarast thareon is suspended, when thene are reasonable
doulbts that the batances will be recoverad in full andior the relaled interest will be colleciad for the amourds and on the
dates initially agreed upon | taking into account the guarantees recelved by the eniily to assure (in part or in full) the
perfiormance of fransactions. Amounie collected in relations to impaired loans and receivables are wsed o récognize the
related accruaed interest and any excess amount is wsed 10 reduca the principal nol yel pakd,

When the recovery of any recognized amount is considered fo be remote, this amount s remaots, this amouwnt is resoved
from the balance sheel, wilhout prejudice to any aclions taken by the entfity in order to collect the amount wntil their rights
extinguish in full through expiry, forghveness or for obher reasons.

Calculation of impairment financial assels

The impairmant on financial assis is delesmingd by ype of instrurment and the calegory where is recognized, as follows:
Impairmaont of debt instruments carried at amortized cosi:

Impairment losses datermined Individually

The quantification of impairment losses of the sssets clagsified as impaired is done on an individual basis in which
customers in e amoun of their operations is egual to or excaads €1 mikon.

The amount of the impairment losses incurred on fhese instruments relates to the positve dillerence belween thelr
respective carmying amounts and the present values of their expectod fubere cash flows,

The following is 1o be taken info consideration when estimating the future cash flows of dabd instruments:

s Al the amounts that ara expacted lo be oblained over e residual lile of the instrument; including, wheare
appropriate, those which may resull from the guarantees provided for the instrument (after deducling the cosls
reqjuired for foreclosure and subseguant sale),

»  The vanious types of risk to which each instrument is subject.
*»  Thae circumstances in which colleclions will foreseeable be made.

These cash flows are discounted using the oniginal effective inferest raie. If a financial instrument has a variable inenes!
rate, the discount rate for measuring any Impairment boes is the cument effective rale delermined under the confract.

As an exceplion to the rule described above, the market value of quoted daebt instruments is deemed 1o be a fair estimate
of she present value of their fulure cash flows.

Impairment losses determined collectively

The quantification of impairment losses is determined on a collective basis in the fallowing two cases:
»  Assols classified as impaired of customers in which the amount of their operations is less than €1 million.
= Asszal porilolio nol impaired but which presenis an inherend loss.

To estimale ke colleciive loss of credit risk corresponding 1o operations with resident in Spain, the BEVA uses the
parameters sel by Annex |X of the Circular 472004 from Bank of Spain on the base of its experience and the Spanish
banking sector information in the quantifcation of impairment losses and provisions for insolvencies for credil risk. These
paramefers will be used as far as the Bank of Spain validates internal models based on historical meparience of the Bank.

The debl instrumenis, whoever the obligor and whatever the guarantes or collateral, thal have pasi-due amounts wilh
more than three months, shall be analyzed indwidually, taking info account the age of the past-due amounts, the
guarantees or collateral provided and the economic sifuation of the customer and the guarantors.

in the case of unsecured fransaclions and faking into account the age of the past-due amounis, the allowance
perceniages ara as folow;

| Age of the past-due amount Allowance percentage
Up 1o 6 months Between 4.5% and 5.3%
Cwer & moniha and up 10 12 months Between 27.4% and 27 8%
Over 12 months and up to 18 months Between B0.5% and 65.1% B
Dver 18 menthe and up to 24 months " Between 53.3% and 95.8%
Over 24 months 10:0%
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Debt instruments classified as doubl for reasons olher than cusiomer arrears shall be analyzed individually,
2 Ganeral §

8 podiiolio milo force

The debt instruments, whoever the obligor and whatever the guarantee or collateral, that do not have individually
objactive of impairment are collectively assesses, including the assats in a group with simifar credit risk characteristics.
sactor of activity of the debior or the iype of guarantes,

The allowance percentages of hedge are as follows:
- Megliglble rigk: 0%
- Lo risk: 00200 - 0.75%
- Mediume-low risk: 0.50% - 1.88%
- Meedium rigk: 0.59% - 2.26%
- Medium-high risk: 0.88% - 2.50%
- High risk: 0.83% - 3.12%

Y i L

Ot debf instrumeants:

The impairment |osses on delt instruments included in the avallable-for-sale financial assel portfolio is the posilive
difference between their acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment or amorizalion) and their fair value less any
impalnment loss previously recognized in the income stalement.

When there is objective evidence thal the negalive differances arising on measurement of these assets are due fo
impairment, ey are no longer classified as “Valualion Adjusiments — Available-for-Sale Financial Assels™ and are
recognieed in the ncome statement, if all or pans of the mpairment losses are subseguently reversed, the reversed
amount would be recognized in the income statement for the period in which the reversal occurred.

¢} Recognition of income and expenses
The most significant criteria used by the Bank 1o recognize its income and expenses are summarnzed as follows:
Interest income, interest expenses and similar items.

As a general rule, interest income, ineres! expenses and similar items are recognized on the basis of their pariod of
accrual using the efiective interest method. Specifically, dividends recived from other companies are recognized as
Income when the companies” right them ariges.

Specifically, loan arrangement fees, basically loan origination and application fees, are deferred and recognized in the
income slaternent over ihe life of the ban, The dinecl costs incurmad in arranging these transactons can be dedscied
from the amount thus recognized. Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 stipulates that, in the absence of cost accounding 1o
dedesmine direc! cosls, these costs may be offset against the arrangement fee by wp to 0.4% of the lean principal, subjoct
to a limit of EUR 400 per rangaction; this amount is crediled fo the income statement when the ioan is aranged and
reduces the aforementioned deferred fees,

However, when a debl instrument is deemed (o be impaired individually or is included in a group of msiruments that ane
impaired because of amounts more than three months past-due, the recognition of accrued interest in the Income
slalement iz suspanded. This Interes! is recognized for accounting whaen collecied, as a reversal of the impairment loss,

Commisslons, fees and similar iterms:

Fee and commission income and expenses are recognized in the income statement using critera that vary according to
their nature. The most significant fee and commission iterms are as follows:

* Those arising from (ransactions or services that are provided over a period of time, which are recognized over
tha life of ihese transactions or services.

#  Those ralating 1o a single act, which are recognized when the singe acl is caniad out.
Non-finance income and expensaes:
These are recognized for accounting purposes on an accrual basis.
Defarrod collections and payments:

These are recognized for accounting purposes at the amount resuffing from discounting the expected cash flows at
market raies.,
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d} Post-employment benefits and other commitments to employees

Following is & description of the most significant accounting criteria relating to the commilments lo employees, related to
post-employment benafils and other commitmenis, of the Bank and branch sbroad (Note 16},

Commitments valuation: assumptions and galnsflosses recognition

The present values of the commitments are quantified on a case-by-case basis. The valuation method used for curent
employess 15 the projecled unil crod! method, which views each year of service as giving rise to an additional unit of
benefit enfiflemant and measures each unit separataly.

In adopting the actuarial assumpiions, it s faken ifo accound that:
*  They are unbiased, in that they are neither imprudant nor excessively conservative,

*  They are mutually compatible, reflecting the economic relationships between factors such as inflation, rates of
salary increase and discount rates,

*  The fulure levels of salaries and benefits are based on mamked expeclations at the balance sheet daie for the
period aver which the obligations are to be seitled,

= The discount raie used is defermined by reference lo market yields at the batance sheet date on high quadly
corporate bonds.

Acluarial gains or losses ansing from differences between the actearial assumplions and what had actually occurred
wers recogrded in the income sialements. The bank did not use ihe “comidor approach”.

Post-employment benafits
- Ponsions
Post-employmant benefils include defined contribution and defined obligation cormmitmeanis,

The amounts of these commitmenis are delermined, on a case-by-case basis, as a percentage of certain remunaration
items andfor as a pre-establshed annual amount, The current contribuficns made by the Bank for defined contribution
refiremant commibments, which are racognized with a charge to the heading "Personnel Expensss - Contributions 1o
axtarnal pansion funds® in the accompanying income statements {notes 16 and 34)

- Defined benefit commitments
The Bank has defined benefit commilments for permanent disabilily and death of current emplovess and early relineas,
for death of certain retired employees; and defined-benefit retirement commitments applicable ondy to cemain groups of

genving employess (urvesied benefs), or early relingd employees(vesied benefits) and of refired amployess {ongoing
benefila). Defined benefit commitments are fundad by insurance contracls and internal provisions,

Entities that have covered their pengion commitmeants with insurance policies wrilten by entilbes forming par of the group
shall recognize those commitments as follows:

(i} Pansion commitmanis io employees shall be recorded as pension provisions,
14 The surance policy shall be recorded on the asset sida as an insurance confract linked to pensions.

(i The expense for the period shall b recorded in the item "personnel expenses” nel of the amound relating
to the insurance contracls.

= Early retirements

Previous years, the Bank offered certain employoes in Spain the possibility of taking early refirement before the age
stipulated in the collective labor agresment in force. The comesponding provisions by the ank were recognized with a
charge to the heading “Provision Expense (MNel) — Transfers to Funds for Pensions and Similar Obligations - Early
Retremends” in the accompanying income statements (Mole 18). The prasend values are guaniified on case-by-case
basis and they are recognized In the heading “Provisions — Funds for Pensions and Simiar Obligations” in the
accompanying balance sheets (Mote 16},

The commidtments to early retirees include the compensation and ndemnities and contribulions io external pension funds
payable during the year of carly retirement. The commitments relating 1o this group of employees after they have
reached ihe age of effective refirement are Included In the employves wallare sysiem.

= Post-employments welfare benefils

Thé Bank has walfare benefit commilments the effects of which exiend beyond the retirement of the amployess entitled
to the benefils. These commilments relate fo cortain current employees and retirees, depending upon the employee
group to which they belong.

The present values of the vested obligations for post-employment welfare benefits are quantified a case-by-case basis,
They are recognized in the heading “Provisions - Funds for Pensions and Similar Qbligations® in the accompanying
balance sheets (Note 15) and they are charged to the heading “Parsonnel expanses — Other personnel expenses” in the
accompanying income statemants (Mote 34).
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- Other commitments to employees

The Bank is cbliged o deliver parilally or fully subsidized goods and services. The most significant amployes welfare
benefits granted, in terms of the type of compensation and the ewent giving rise to the commitments are: loans to
employees, [ife insurance, study aid and long-senvice bonuzes.

The preseni values of the vested obligations for commitments with perscnnel are quantified on a case-by-case basis.
They are recognized in the heading “Provisions — Funds for Pensions and Similar Obligations® in he accompanying
balance sheels (see Mole 15). The post-employments welfane banefls calivered by the Bank to aclive employess are
racognized in the heading “Personnel Expenses - Other personnel expenses” in the accompanying income statements
{see Nole 34},

Otver commitments for current employees accrue and are setifed on B yearly basis, it is nol necessary 1o record a
provision in this connection,

8) Foreign currency transactions and exchange differences
Agsets, Habllitles and futures transactions

The assels and llabilities In foreign currendies, including those of branches abroad, and the unmaturad hedging foreard
foreign currency purchase and sale fransaclions were Iranslated lo euros at the average exchange rates on the Spanish
spot currency market (or based on the price of the S, dollar on bocal markeds for the currencies not fisted on this
markat) at the end of each period, with the exception of unmatured forward foreign currency purchases and sales not
arranged for hedging purposes, which were valued at the exchange rates ruling on the forward foreign exchange market
al year-end, published by the Bank of Spain to this end.

The breakdown of the main foreign cumency balances in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007 and 2006, based on
the nature of the related items, is as follows:

Equivalent Value in Thousands
2007 of Euros
Assels Liabilities
Financial asseisliabities held Tor irading = -
Availahle-for-sale financial asseis 185,336
Loans and recaivables 18 -
Other T58 23,506
Total 195,118 | 23,505 |
Equivalent Value in Thousands
2005 of Euros
Asseis Liabllitles
Financial asselsMiabilities held for trading 347 347
Available-for-sale inanclal assets 183,079 -
Loans and receivables 54 -
Other 1,324 22,764
Total 184,804 2311




f) Tangible Assets
Tangible assets for own use:

Functional 1angible assets =including tangible assets received by the Bank in full or parfial satisfaction of financial assets
representing raceivables from third parties which are intended 1o e hedd for conliruing use and tangible assets acquired
under finance lbases- are presented al acquisition cost less the related accumylaled depraciation, and any estimatad
impairment bosses (net carrving emount higher than related fair value).

Deprecistion is calculMed by the straight-line method on the basis of the acquisition cost of the asgels less their residusl
valus. The land on which the buildings and other structures sfand has an Indefinile life and, therefore, is not deprecialed.

The langible asse! depreciation charge is recognized in the income siatement and is calculated basically using the
fellowing depreciation rates (based on the average years of estimated useful fife of the various assets):

Annual
Rate
Buildings for own use 1.32% to 4%
Furnitura 8% 1o 10%
Flzturas B% to 12%%
Cffice and automsation equprment B% fo 255

The Bank assees al the reporting date whether there is any internal or exdernal indication that an asset may be impaired
(i-e. its carnying amouni exceeds its recoverable amount). In this case the camying amount of the asset is seduced to s
recoverable amount and future depreciation charges are adjusted in propartion to the new remaining useful iife and o
thie réviged carrying amount.

Simikarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of a tangible #ssel, the Bank recognizes the reversal of the
impairment |oss recognized in prior periods and, consequently, adjusts the fulure depreciation chargee. In no
circumgiances may (he reversal of an impairment loss on an asse! raise its camying amount above that which # would
have if no impairmeni losses had been recognized in prior years.

Uipkeep and maintenance expenses relaling to tangible assets for own use are recognized as an expense in the period in
which they are incumed.

@) Tax assets and liabilities

The corporation tax expense is recognlzed in the income stalement, axcept when it resulls form a transaction recognized
direcily in eguily, in which case the related tax effect s also recognized in eguity

The current income tax expense is calculated by aggregating the curren! tax arising from the application of the rolated
tax rale to the taxable profil for the period (after deducting the tax credits aliowabde for tax purposes) and (he change in
deferred tax assets and habilities recognized in the income statemeant.

Defarred fax sssels and Habilties include lemporary diffsrences, measured at the amount expected 1o be paysable or
recoverable on diferences between the carrying amounts of assete and llabililes and their tax bases, and tsx loss and
lax credil carry lonwards. These amounts ara measured at the tax rates thal are expecied 1o apply in the perod when the
assel ig realized or the habilily seftled.

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is considerad probable that there will ba sufficient taxable profits
in the fulure against which the deferred tax assels can be ulifized.

The deferred tax asset and liabilities recognized are reassessed at each reporting date in order to ascertain whether they
slill ewist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.

hi Leases

Leases are classified as finance when thoy transfer substantiaily the risks and rewards incidental o ownership of the
assat forming the subject maiter of the confract. Leases other than finance leases are classiked as operating leases.

When ihe Bank acl as the lesser of an asset in finance leases, e aggregate present values of the lease paymenls
recenvable form the lesses plus the guaranteed residual value (nommally the axarcise price of the lesses's purchase
oplion on expiration of the lease agresment) are recorded ae financing provided to third parties and, therefore, are
included under the heading “Loans and Receivables® in the accompanying balance sheeis,
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i} Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are exisling obligations arising from legal or contractual requirements, valic expectations crealed by Bank in
third parties regarding lhe assumption of cortain ypes of regponsibilities, or vinual cerainty as to the fulve course of
regulation in paricular respects, especially proposad new legislation that tha Bank cannol avoid.

Provisions are recognized in the balance shoet when each and evary ane of the following requirements is met: the Bank
has an exisling obligation resulting from a past ovent and, at the balance sheet dale, il is more likaly than not that the
obligation will have to be sefiled; it is probable that to sefle the obligation the enfity will have to five up resources
embodying economic benefits; and a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Contingen! Fabifities are pogsible obligations of the Bank that arise from past evenie and whose edsience ls conditional
on the occufrence or non-occumence of one or more fulure events beyond the control of the enlity, They include the
existing obligations of the enlity when it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces ambodying economic benefils will be
required o setthe them or when, in extremely rare cases, Ineir amount cannot be measured with sufficient rexlighility.

§) Transfers of financial assets and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The accounting freatment of transfers of financial assets depends on the extent 1o which the risks and rowands
associaled with the transferred assets are transferred to third paries. |f substantially all the risks and rewards are
transferred io third parfies, the fransferred financial assel is derecognizéd and, at the same time, any right or ohligalion
refained or created as a result of the transfer is recognized,

If substantially all the risks and rewards associaled with the transferred financial assel are retained, the lransferred
financial asset is not derscognized and continues 1o be measured using the same crileria as those used before lo the
fransfer.

Financial assets are only derecognized when the cash flows they generale have extinguished or when substantiaily all
the risks and rewards incidental 1o them have been fransferrad, Simdarly, financial liabilities are only deracognized when
the obiigations they generate have extinguishad or when they are acquired (with the intention either setlie therm or re-ssll
thiern)

k) Own equity instruments

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Bank did not hold any treasury shares.

I} Termination Benefits

There were no redundancy plans in the Bank, so it is not necessary to recognize a provision for this issue,

3. Distribution of profit

The distribution of the Bank's net profil for 2007 that will be proposed by the Board of Directors for approval by the
shareholdars at the Annual General Meeting is 1o pay a dividend for the whole prodit amount, i.e. EUR 48876 ihousand,

osure

Transactions with financial instruments may involve the assumplion or ransfer of one or mare ypes of rigk by financiat
institutions. The risks associated with fnancial instruments ara:

a) Markel risks: these arise as a consequence of halding financial Instruments whose value may be affacted by
changes in market conditions; they include three types of risk:

i} Foreign currency risk, which arises as a resull of changes in the exchange rate between
currencies,

{ii} Fair value inlerest rate risk, which arises as a resull of changes in market interest rates,

{iii) Price risk, which arises as a result of changes in market prices, due aither o factors specific fo the

individual instrumant or to faclors that affect all instruments traded an the markat,

b} Credit risk: this is the risk that one of the paries to the financial mstrument agraameant will fail o horour s
confraciual obligations due to the insalvency or incapacity of the individusls or legal entities invohved and will
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

€} Liguidity risk’ occasionally referred 1o as funding risk, this arises eifher because the anfity may be unable o sall

8 financial asset quickly at an amounl close to its fair value, or because the anfity may encourder difficully in
finding funds to mest commitments assoclated with financial Instrurmants.

14



The Bank, as a member of the BBVA Group, paricipales in the Group's global risk management system which is based
on ifree components: a corporate risk management sineciure;, a set of tools, circuits and procedures that make up the
differant risk management systems; and an internal confrol sysiem. Following |s & summary of the three components:

Corporate risk management structure

The Board of Direclors is the body responsible for setting risk policles. The Board hence esiablishes the general
principles defining the target risk profile for the Bank, Likewise. Il approves the infrastructure required for risk
management, the delegation ramework and the ceilings system thal enable the business to develop in keeping with this
risk profile in day-to-day decision-making.

The Lending Commiline undertakes periodic analysis and manitoring of risk managemant within the various levels of
delegation of the Bank's adminisiralion bodies. The scope of lts functions comprises:
= Analysing and assessing proposals for the Bank nisk sirategy and policies in order to submit to the Bank's
Standing Commilles for approval.
= Monitoring the degree to which the risk assumed are in line with the specified profile, as a reflection of the Bank’
& rigk tolerance and expected samings in view of tha risk exposura,
»  Approval of risk operation within the established delegation system.
«  Verification that the Bank Is provide with the means, systems, structures and resources in line wilth besi
praclices to enable il to implemant its risk managemant strategy.
»  Submission of the proposals it congiders necessary or appropriale to the Bank' & Standing Committee g0 that
fisk management adapts to best practices arising from recommendations on corporate governance or from risk
supervisory bodies.

The Bank' s risk management system is managed by an independant risk area, which combinea a view by risk lypes wilh
a global view. The Risk Area assures that the risk 1ools, matrics, historical daiabases and information systems are in ling
and uniform. Il likewise sefs the procedures, circuits and general management criteria,

The Global Risk Commitiee — composed by those in chargs of the bank” 5 risk managemant — has as main tasks thal
development and implementation of the Bank” 5 risk management model as weldl as the cormect integration of the rigk” s
co8is in the different decision-making processes. The Global Risk Commitiee sssesssa the global risk concentrations
and mifigation technigues; monitors the macrosconomic emdronment and the perdformance of entities In the secior
gquantifying global sensitivity and the expected impact of different scenarios of risk positioning.

The Technical Transactions Commiltes analyses and approves, where appropriale, the financial lransactions and
programmmes thal are within its level of authorisalion, and refers any franseciions exceeding the scopa pl s delegated
powers [ the Lending Commithes,

The New Products Committes ia responsible for studying and, o necessary, for approving fhe introduction of new
producls before the activities begin. The Committes is aleo responsible for controlling and manitaring the new products,
and for promaling business in an orderly way, and allow them to develop in 8 condrclled environmeant,

The Assel-Liabily Commilies (ALCCO) i the body responsible for actively managing the Bank' s struclural ligusdity,
mberast rale and currency risks, and its core capital.

Tools and clreuits

The Group has implemented an integral fisk management system designed to cater for e needs arising in relafion fo
the various types of risk; this prompied it to equip the management processes for each risk with measurement lools for
risk pocsplance, assessmenl and moniloring and lo define the approgpriate circuils and procedures, which are refleclad in
manuals that alao include managemeant criteria,

Specifically, the main risk management aclivities performed are as follows: calculation of the risk sxposures of the
various porfolios, considering any related mitigating factora (nefting, collateral, etc); calculation of the probandity of
default {FD), loss severity and expectad loss of each portfiolio, and assignment of the PD 1o the new transactions (ralings
and sconings); measuremant of the values-at-risk of the portfolios based on various scenarios using historical and Monte
Caro simulations; establishment of limits o the polentia! losses based on the various risks incurred; determination of the
possible impacts of the structural risks on the income statement; solting of Bmits and alers to safeguard the Group's
liguidity; idendificalion and guantificalion of cperational risks by business fine 1o enable tha mitigation of these risks
through corrective measures, and definition of efficient circuils and procedures which contribule fo the achisvemsant of
the targets set.

al STRUCTURAL INTEREST RATE RISK
The aim of cn-balance-sheal interest rate sk managemeant is 1o makntain the Bank's exposure to market interest rate
fiuctuations at levels in keeping wilh its risk strategy and profile. To thiz end, the ALCO actively manages the balance

gheel through transactions intended fo oplimise the level of risk assumed in relafion fo the expected resulls, thus
enabling the Bank io comply wilh the tolerable risk Emits.
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The ALCO bases is activities on the interest rate risk measurements performed by the Risk Area. Acling as an
l_ﬂdEPEﬂﬂmt undl, the Hisk Area pericdically guaniifies the impact of inferes! rate fluciuations on the Bank's ned interest
income and econamic value,

In addition o measuring sensitivity to 100-basis-point changes in market interest rates, the Bank performs probabilistic
calculations 1o determine the economic capital for struclural IMerest rale risk in the Bank’s banking aclivity based on
inferest rate curve simulalion models.

All these risk measurements are subsedquently analysed and monitored, and the levels of risk assumad and the degree of
compliance with the limits authorised by the BEBVA's Standing Committee are reported to the various managing and
governing bodies of the Bank.

The average sensitivily of the net interest margin to 100-basis-point changes In interest rates is EUR -1.1 million,

Tha impaci of 100-basis-poini changes on the Bank's economic vabee is EUR 2.9 millicn. Economic capélal at he D9.9%
pescentile for structural interest rate risk s EUR 1.8 milllan.

As parl of the meagurement process, the Bank eslablished the assumplions regarding the evalution and behaviour of
cartain itams, such as thoss relating lo products wilh no explicit or confractual maturity. These sssumplions are based on
sludias that estimale the relationship between the inberest rates on these producis and market rales and enable speciiic
bakances 10 be classified into frend-based balances, maturing &l long 1enm, and seasonal or volalile balances, with short-
Termm residual maturity.

b) CREDIT RISK MAMAGEMENT
Development of exposure and quality of credit risk

BCL's maximum exposure 10 credit risk amounled to EUR 14,463 milion at 31 December 2007, 13.8% lower than a
2006 year-and,

Credil risk with customers (59% of the total exposure, including off-balance-sheet Hems) totalled EUR 8,509 millkan and
decreased by 7%, whereas balances drawabla by third parlies (7% of the fofal exposure) amounted to EUR 1,047 millicn
and increased by 17.6%. Other exposure (Ioans and advances to credil institutions and other fixed income securities)
represented 24% of the 1otal,

In 2007 tha risk gualily indicators remained at levels similar to 2008, Thus, doubiful belances amounted to EUR 40,651
thaugand and the non-performing loans ralio stood at 0.48%.

The allowance for credit risk on loans and advances to customers decreased by EUR 1.9 million in 2007 o EUR 330
million; impairment lnsses collectively assessed declined by EUR 1.2 million and impairmaent losses individually assessed
fedl by EUR 0.8 miion. The non-performing loans coverage ralko in 2007 was 83%.

¢} LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank aimg to orderly replace s existing Babilies upon malurly, while minknising variations in wholesale funding
Accordingly, in 2007, the Bank ook several actions almed af extending and diversifying its funding sources.

Everny month, the ALCO reviews ligudity gaps and compliance with ihe esiablished shor-term limiis, and ensures that
medium- and long-term funding needs in the wholasale markeis ara compatible wilh the Bank's capacly to raise funding
in the capital markels. Addilionally, the Bank is included in the BEVA Group's Bquidity risk measurement systams, and
follows the guidelines kaid down by the Group in this area,

The mosi significant event in terms of wholesale financing was the 18-monih senior debt isgue of EUR 1,000 million

The range of guaranices accepbed for Bank of Spain monetary policy transactions was extended and access o
privileged funding sources with new guaraniee stirucluras was maximized (EIB, Council Europa, ...}
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The Bank's maturity matrves in euros at 31 Decembaer 2007 are as foflows:

ol Thousands of Euros =
On Within 1 1-3 3-12
Balance | pomand | Month Months Months | 7-85Yeam | +5Years
Money market 2,324 619 100,089 | 2,113,330 = 91,200 20,000
Imvasimeant
securilias 2,556,526 - 37.000 4,165 136,341 419,737 | 1,080,283
Loans and
receivables 7,720 861 . 105 265 203,877 203,111 | 28681344 | 3 626,164
Total | 12,611,006 100,089 | 2,256 595 208,942 | 1067452 | 3372281 5 605 447
e Thousands of Euros
galance | o ON | " | asonn tontis | 1-8Years | +5Years
Money marked 4,287 244 a7.411 4,194 832 - -
Customer deposils 1,807,206 | 1.681,162 193,024 25,184 7815 - -
Wholasale furding 6,148,663 R -1 1011248 51,363 | 4,750,328 335,743 |
Total | 12,344 132 | 1,768,573 | 4,392,866 | 1,036,443 58178 | 4,750,328 336,743
GAPS 266,874 | (1,668.484) | (2136,272) | (828,501) | 1,008.274 | {1,376,048) | 5.260,704

5. Cash and balances with central banks
The breakdown of the balance of this heading in the balance sheets at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Balances with the Bank of Spain 100,073 223,373
Total 100,073 223,373

The breakdown of the balances of these headings in the balance sheels at 31 December 2007 and 2008 is as folows!

Thousands of Euros
2007 w008
Financial Financial
Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilites
Assels Held Held for Assats Held Held for
for Trading Trading for Trading Trading
Trading derlvatives B 377 47 524 0,243 15,885
Total 57,377 47,524 30,243 15,885
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The breakdown, by type of transaction, of the balances of these headings in the batance sheets at 31 Decembar 2007
and 2006 is as follows;

Thousands of Euros
. Forslgn R
_— ek | insorent wate| Eaquity Prios o~
Risk Rigk
Currancies
OTC markets
Credit inatitutions 5,280 (10,254 4,041 (933)
Forward fransaciions 5,280 . 3 6,280
Swagps . 15,408 . 15,595
Oplions - (25,849 4,041 {21,608)
Other sectors . 14,827 4, 041) 10,788
Swaps - 2,528 - 2,826
Oplians - 11,802 {4,041} 7861
Total 5280 4573 = 9,853
Classification by res|dual
mealurity of trading
darivatives
Wihin 1 manth B,280 - - 5,280
1 to 3 mondhs x (a7 % (27}
3 manths to 1 yaar - {1} - {1}
1t 2 years - ) - =]
2 b 3 years - (™) - 71}
3 bo 4 years . 458 = 45
4t §years - s - s
Aftar 5 yoars - 4,254 - 4,254
Tatal 5,280 4,573 - 9,853

Of which:

Assot trading derivatives 6,844 45,492 4,041 57377

Liability trading derivatives {1,564} {41,918} {4,041] {47 524}
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Thousands of Euros
2004 ;umm
rre
mﬁﬂf Im;;tknm Irhr;:hﬂm Total
Currancies
QTS markats
Credil institutions 4,229 8,049 - 12,278
Forward iransaciions 4,229 . - 4,329
Swaps 18,255 - 18,255
Oplions 114,208} - {11, 208)
Other sectors 2070 - 2070
Swans 1. 465 - 1465
Options . 605 e gas
Total 4,229 10,118 - 14,348
Classification by residual 2
realurity af trading
Darivatives
Within 1 marith - = -
1 ko 3 months 4,220 - & 220
3 months ie | yesr - 1 i
1 bo & yoars - 2 - 2
2 to 3 yoars = ” %
3 to 4 yoars o - * ¥
4 o 5 yRars = - * o
After § years - 10,116 - 10,116
Total 4,228 10,114 14,344
which:
Aseal rading derivatives 4,238 26,004 * 30,243
_I.I-Bhllﬁj' trading darivailves| {10} {15,885) & {15,885

The deiall, by type of transaction, of the balance of this heading in the balance shaats ai 31 December 2007 and 2008, s

as

Thousands of Euros
2007 2008 |
Debt instruments

Spanish government debi securilies 495,361 823,712
Foreign govemment debl securities 1,380,855 1,135,006
lssued by credit institutions 248,121 147,122
Rasidant 4,145 23,781
Mon-resident 243,978 83,541
Oither fixed-income instrumenis 465,863 672 448
Resident {*) 417,588 498,031
Man-residant 48,335 74,418
Valuation adjusiments (™) 78827 171,034
Total 2,678,927 2,618,323

(") Inghedes assat-backed bonds amounting 1o ELIR 382,050 Ihousand and EUR 462,481 thousand,

respaciively (Nete B.3)

{**) The valuation adjusiments shicwn abova ralaie to hedging dearivatives sssaciabad with

availabla-for-sale financial assets.
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In 2007 and 2008, €1,377 thousand and €2.331 thousands, respectvely, were debited to Valuation Adjustments and
recorded under Gains/Losses on Financlal Assels and Liabiliies in the income statements for 2007 and 2005 (Note 33).

The detail, by geographical area, of the debt sacurities and other equily instruments included under this heading,
disregarding impairment kosses, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

. 2007 2008
Eurcpe 2,513,198 2,352,138
United States 34,180 36,226
Rest of the world 52,005 57,004
Total 2,600,300 2,448,289

Losses net of tax and hedging derivabives associatad with the portfollo recognised in equity at 31 December 2007
amounted 1o EUR 7,147 thousand {at 31 December 2006, such net losses amountad to EUR 8,877 thousand),

8.1. Breakdown

The detail, by type of financial instrument, of the balance of this heading in the balance sheels at 31 Decomber 2007 and

2008, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2008

Loans and advances to credit instilutions 2227 678 &1, 202
Loans and advances to customers 7,825,621 5465237
Other financial assals * T
Gross total 10,053,535 8,500,571

Less: Impairment losses (33,844) {35,680)
Net total 10,019,655 8,455,091

8.2. Loans and advances to credit institutions

The datail, by type of financial instrument. of the balance of this heading in the balance sheets al 31 December 2007 and

2008, I= as follows:
Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Time depasils 2,224 546 40,784
Cither accounls = 204
Grogs total 2,224,548 41,088
Valuation adjustmants () 3,432 114
Bet total & aal,9Te 41,202

() The waluation agjusiments showm abowee relate 1o the aconal of inlenas! ard similas incama.




8.3. Loans and advances to customers

;hﬂ detall, by loan type and status, of the balance of this heading in the balance sheats at 31 December 2007 and 2006,
as follows:

Thousands of Euros

i © 2007 2006
Commencial cradit - 15,840
Secwred loans 331,255 877348
Credit accounts 7,268,609 7,675,248
Oither loans 31228 BE.O72
Receivable on demand and other 1,083 5
Impaired assels 40,851 40,668
Gross total T,B02,804 8,405,174
Valualion adjusiments (*) {11127 18,183

Mettotal | 7,791,677 | 8,423,357 |

1"} The valuglion agjusimanis shown above refabes io e accrusl af inkerest and simiar ingoma, to Tae

and commission vakis adjustmsnts, %o micro-hedge irarsaction value adialmants aod 1o the value
adusimends for assel impakmant on icars and sdvances 1o customers.

The breakdown, by borrower sector, of the balance of this heading at 31 December 2007 and 2008, disregarding
valuation adjustmenls, is as follows:

2007 Thousands of Euros ]
Residents |[Non-Residents|  Total
Public sector T.451,370 - 7451370
Agricullure 307 o7
Manufactuning 2,007 - 2,007
Real estate and construction 16,106 - 15,105
Trade and financa 320 = 320
Loans to individuals BB = Lilt
Oriner 266,327 66,670 332,997
Total T, 736,134 66,670 7,802,604
2006 Thousands of Eurcs
Residents [Non-Residents  Total

Public sector 7,814,708 7,614,708
Agricultura 278 278
Manufaciuring 73 T3
Real eslale and consinsction 20,611 - 20,811
Trade and hnance 360 &0
Loans to individuals 1,182 3 182
Other 333,542 134,220 333,642
Total 8,270,954 134,220 8,405,174




The detail, by geographical area, of this heading at 31 December 2007 and 2006 ks as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2008
Ewrope T.736,134 8,270,054
United States 88,670 134,220
Total | 7,802,804 | 6,405,174

Al 31 Decamber 2007 and 2006, there ware no loans sacurilised through securitisation spacial purpose vehicles thal
could not be derecognisad.

However, n 2000 the Bank securilised loans In the Loans and Advances lo Customers porifolic which were
derecognised since the requirements for derecognifion were mei (Mote 2-). At 31 December 2007 and 2008, the
securidised loans amounting to EUR 355 246 thousand and EUR 440 827 thowsand, respectively, ware derecognised
{Note 28).

Al 31 December 2007 and 2005, the balance of assel-backed bonds acquired in full by the Bank amounied to EUR
382,050 thousand and EUR 482481 thousand, respeclively, and are included under “Available-for-Sale Financial
Assels” (Mol 7).

8.4. Impaired assets and impairment losses

The changes in 2007 and 2006 In "Loans and Advances o Customers — Impained Assets” wars a6 follivws:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2006
[Balance at the beginning of the year 40,668 40,663
Changes 1 .
Reversals (18) {1)
Balance at the and of the year 40,651 40,668

The changes in ihe balance of the impairment losses on “Loans and Recaivables” were as followsa.

Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Balance at the beginning of the year 35,680 38,243
Ingreases in impairmen losees charged bo income 116 30
Decrease in impairment lossas credibed o inoome 12,050} (2,393}
Oihers {2) .
Balance at the end of the year 33,944 35,880
Of which:
Individually assassed 32,330 33,113
Collectively assessed 1,514 2,787
Of whikch:
By assat covered:
Loans and advances 1o customerns 43,044 35,880
33,944 35,880
Of which:
By geographical location of risk: 33,844 36,880
Europe 53,444 34,873
| United Stales 500 1,007
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Al 3 December 2007 and 2008, there ware no racoveries of write-off assets.

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, the accrued interest on impalred assets amounted fo EUR 81,206 thousand and EUR
114,303 thousand, respectively, afthough it was not recognised In the related income statements because thore ware
doubls a5 to its collectibity

All assals impaired due 1o their credd risk at 31 December 2007 related to loans granied in Spain and were more than 24
menths past-due with respect to the maturity of the oldest past-due amount or the date on which they were considared 1o
be impaired.

Ag of December 31, 2007 and 2008 the main posilions hadge by the Bank and the denvatives assigned to hedge fhose
posilions ara:

- Fair value hedge:
#  Available for sale fixed rate debt securities: fhis risk is hedge using inlerest — rate derivalives (fixed = variable
SWAPS).
s Long term rate debt issued by Bank thiz 3 hadge uging Interest = rate derivalives (fxed - variabls swaps),
s Fixed rale [oang: ihis rigk is hedged using Ineres! — rate darivatives [fixod = variable swaps).

The detad of the fair valus of interest rale risk hedging dervalives held by the Bank and recognised In the balance sheels
al 31 December 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of Eurocs
2007 2006
OTC markets s
Credit institutions {72.122) (178,778)
Fair value micro-hedges (r2.122) (178, 778)
Other sectors 2 3,116
Fair value micro-hedges 2 3,115
Total (72,120} {173,663}
Of which:
Assel hedging derivatives 182,052 164,407
Liakility hedging derivatives (254,172 (228,070)

The nolional andlor contraciual amourts of the contracts entered into do not reflect the aclual risk assumed by the Bank,
since the net position in these financial instruments 1s the result of offseting andfor combining them.

A5 regards fair value hedges, EUR 22,784 thousand relating fo the correcBon of income (Mote 28) and EUR 20,313
thousand relaling 1o losses on hedging insirumeants (Mole 30) were recognised in the income statemant Tor 2007,

10. Investments

10.1. Investments in assoclates

The changes in the balance of this item in 2007 and 2008, disregarding impairment losses, were as follows:

Thousands of Euros
il 2007 2008
Balance at the baginning of the year 5762 762
Capial increases and punchases - §,000
- Sales 5,762 e WS
Balance at the end of the year - 5.762

The batance of mpairment losses amounied o EUR & 426 thousand at 31 December 2008,

On 21 Decamber 2007, the Bank sold all of its holding in Tribugest Gestidn da Tribulos. S A to Cidrvana, 5.1 {a BBVA
Group company} for it carrying amount at the disposal date,



10.2. Investments in subsidiaries

The balance of this Hem in the accompanying balance sheels inciudes the camying amounts of the shares of BBVA

Group companies,

Ratevant information on these invesiments at 31 Decamibar 2007 s as follows:

Fercmimage of Gwnership
Barast Thousands of Ewos =
Com Location | Busipess Activi Loas for
ey o BTl Total | Sarving | Assots | Listilmios | Equiy | ™0 Yo
achi Amount | IANZUT | Mz | dnaer | M
| ik
1 ;
BCL intarnational Fingmes, | Grand | Finncial services 2
.:L“" G 100% 10%, ] 127447 | 127422 24 7Y

(*y  The shame capital of this company s USD 102, which coincides with £ carrying amount.
(") Previsional loss pandng authorisation for issue by the relevant goveming bodles, and unsudied &l that date.

The changes in the balance of this item in 2007 ana 2006, disregarding impalrment losses, were as faollows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2008
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,218 2,218
- Saleg (2.218) A
Balance at the end of the year e 2,218

The batance of Impalrment loszes amounted lo EUR 819 thousand at 31 December 2008,

I June 2007, the Bank scid all of its holdings in BCL Parlicipaciones, 5.L. and Aserlocal, 5.8, to Ciérvana, S.L. (a BEVA
Group company} for their carrying amounts at the disposal date,

10.2. Impairment losses

The changes In impairment osses on investments in 2007 and 2008 were a5 follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2006
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,045 265
Met charges for the year 465 5, 780
impairment losses charged fo income 551 6,008
Impairment losses ravarsed (96} (228)
- Sales (5,500} -
| Balance at the end of the yoear * g,045




11. Tangible assets

The detail, by ciass of asset, of the changes in 2007 and 2006 in this heading in the balance sheets, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros k2]
2007 For Own Use 8 t
Furniture, i Total
Fixtures and
Buildings Other
Revalued cost-
Ealances at 1 January 2007 9,081 6,303 16,847 32,21
Addifions &1 28 a4 163
Disposals - . - -
Balances at 31 December 2007 9,132 6,331 16,931 22,384
Accumulated depreclation-
Balances at 1 January 2007 1,202 3,185 2,157 6,544
Additions 14 292 269 Tor
Disposaks - i : 2
Balances at 31 Decoember 2007 1,348 3477 2426 7,251
Impairment losses-
Balances at 1 January 2007 - = - =
Balances at 31 December 2007 = * = e
Mat tangible assets-
Balances at 1 January 2007 T.ATS 3,118 14,680 25,8687
Balances at 31 December 2007 T.784 2,854 14,805 25143




Thousands of Euros
For Own Use
2008 Investment Total
Land and F;";m Property
Bulidings Other

Revalusd cost-

Balances at 1 January 2006 8,081 8,281 16,847 32,219
Adithons - 12 - 12
Disposals - - - .
Balances at 31 December 2006 9,081 6,303 16,847 J2.2H
Acoumulated depreciation-

Balances at 1 Janvary 2008 1,057 2,880 1,686 5,823
Adithons 145 305 &M 7249
Cigposals " . . 5
Balances at 31 Decomber 2006 1,202 3,185 2157 B.544
Impairment losses-

Balances at 1 January 2006 . - . -
Balances at 31 December 2008 . - - -
Met tangible assets-

Balances at 1 January 2006 8,024 3411 14,560 25,395
| Balances at 31 December 2006 7.879 3,118 14,690 25,687

&f 31 December 2007 and 2008, no nel impairment losses on langible assels had been charged fo e Income
statenmant,

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, fully degreciated tangible assets amounted to EUR 1,384 thousand and EUR 1,324
thousand, respectively,

and acerued Income and Accrue

The detail of the balances of these headings in the balance sheets at 31 December 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

F Thousands of Euros |
2007 2008
Assets -
Prapaymoens 1 1
Accrued income 204 306
Total 285 308
LiabHities -
Accrued expanses G4 1,362
Total B04 1,362
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The detail of the balances of ihese headings in the balance sheels al 31 December 2007 and 2006 |s as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Other ageels -
Transaclions In transit () . 4,940
Other 43 -
Total 43 4,940
Liabilities
Transactions In transit 4 223
Total 4 223

(*) Incledes, al 31 December 2008, fixed-income coupons receivable and the
reversal of a paymeni for EUR & millian.

14. Fina |

The breakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance shaels is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2008
Deposits from cantral banks 4 186,355 1,800,738
Deposits from credit institutions 258,120 579,206
Customer deposils 2,019,027 2,508,530
Dbl cenificates (including bonds) 5,948,638 5,885,217
Other financial liakililies 56,174 41,881
Total 12,469,314 10,893,681

14.1. Deposits from central banks

The breakdown of the belanca of this heading in the sccompanying balance shests is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Bank of Spain
Credil account drawdowns 3,897,709 1.800,00
Reparchase agresments 282201 =
Walualion adjustmenis {*) 6,355 38
et Total 4,186,355 1,800,738

"} Includes aecmnals,

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the financing limit assigned o the Bank by the Bank of Spain and other ceniral banks
wias EUUR 3,915,281 thousand and EUR 2,748 837 {housand, respectively, of which EUR 3,857, 785 thousand and EUR
1,800,000 ihousand had been drawn down,

e b



14.2. Deposits from credit institutions

The breakdown, by type of ransaciion, of the balance of this heading In the accompanying balance shests, Is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2006
Time deposits 236,835 566,252
Repurchase agreements 18,862 19,343
Other accounis 2425 2,141
Gross Total 258,322 B77, 738
Valuation adjustments (*) 798 1,470
Met Total 259,120 5ra, 208

{*Mncledes acerals.
The balance of this item in the balance sheet relates in full to transactions in Europe.

14.3. Customer deposits

The breakdown, by type of iransaction, of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets, is as follows:

Thousands of Euras
2007 2006
Public sector
Spanish 1,804,708 | 2239248

1,804,709 2,239,248

Cthar resident sectors

Currenl accounts 45,304 34 83T
Time deposis 1,444 B.870
46,748 43,507
Hon-resldents

Time deposils 117,028 147,187
117,028 147,197
Valuation adjusiments {*) 50,542 76,589
NetTotal | 2,018,027 | 2,506,539

O which:
In suros 2,018,027 2:5@5.539

(") The valuation adjusimants shown above relate ta (he acoreal of Inbarest and similar meame and b
valuabion adjusiments ko hedging derivatives associated wilh customer deposils

The balance of “Cuslomer Deposits - Non-Residents — Time Deposils” in the balance sheets, al 31 Dacember 2007 and
2006, includes deposils amounting to EUR 117,028 thousand and ELR 147,197 thousand, respectively, 1aken from BGL
International Finance Lid., 8 company whally owned by the Bank (Mote 10-2), which engages in the raising of funds in
the: international markets for subsequent lending 1o the Bank. A1 31 December 2007 and 2008, the outstanding balance
of the Eurc Medium Term Mote Programme amounted lo EUR 117,028 thousend and EUR 147,197 thousand,
respeclively. The issues oultstanding under this programme are uncondiionally and irevocably guaranteed by the Bank
and were launched in varlous currencies, at implicit and explicit fived and foating inferest rates.
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The defail, by geographical area, of the heading a1 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Depoeits
Camand
wilh agreed
2007 deposits Maturity -
Europe 1625415 238042 | 1,861,457
Rest of the world - 117.028 117,028
Total 1625415 343,070 1,968,485
Thousands of Euros
Deposits
Demand
with agraad Total
2008 deposits | ™\0 tily
Europe 2,127,108 155,555 | 2,282,753
Rest of the woarld 147,197 147,197
Total 2,127,188 302,752 2,429,850

14.4. Debt certificates (including bonds)

" T breakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets is as follows:

Thousands of Eurcs
ok 2007 1006
sl Bonds and debentures ocutatanding:
Cithar non-conveartible securities 5,880,061 5 800,528
Gross total | 5,888 861 5880828
Valuation adjustments () 58,877 74,280
Mettotal | 5948638 | 5085217

{7} Includes accnuals, issue costs and valualion adjustments for micro-hedging transacians,

The defail, by currency and [nferest rate, of the balance of ihis heading in the accompanying balance sheets

disregarding valuslion adjustmants, is as follows:

Thousands of Eurps
2007 2006
In euros
Mon-convertible bonds and territorial bonds at floating
rates 1,420,553 1,420,083
Non-convertible bonds and termilodial bonds at fixed
rales 4 485 408 4 470 345
Total 5,689,881 5,890 928

The item *Non-Converible Bonds and Territorial Bonds &l Floating Rates” includes:

EUR 1,000,000 thousand issue made in Juty 2007 and maturing in February 2009, with nominal intarest rate of

thwae month EURIBOR plus 4 basis poinis,




- lssue subscribed exclusively by the Eurcpean Investment Bank as security for the financing facilities arranged by
the Bank with it malaumwunmdthulyﬂﬂmandammlnEm1ﬂﬂ.mummmdandhminuu
wera launched in September 2004, amouniing to EUR 120,000 thousand and EUR 148,832 thousand,
respectively. These issues mature in March 2018, Sapterbar 2010 and Seplember 2013, respectivaly, and bear
interest that will be the lower of the EIB rate and 3-manth EURIBOR plus 13 besis paints.

The item “Non-Converlible Bonds and Tesritorial Bonds et Flxed Rates” includas;

EUR 1,500.000 thousand issue of temitorial bonds made by the Bank in April 2003, which bear fixed annual interest
of 3.75% until their final redemption in April 2010,

EUR 1,000,000 ihousand issue of territorial bonds made by the Bank in June 2004, which bear fixed annual inlerest
of 3.75% unfil their final redemption in June 2009,

EUR 1,000,000 thousand issue of terrilorial bonds made by the Bank in March 2005, which bear fixed annual
interest of 2.75% until thelr final redemption in March 2008,

EUR 1,000,000 thousand issue made by the Bank in October 2008, which bear fied annual interest of 3.75% unill
their final redemption In March 2011,

Several issues with final maturity in 2012, all bearing inerast at 4%,

The interes! accrued on marketable debt securlies in 2007 and 2008 amounted to EUR 225,322 thousand and EUR
198,861 thousand, respactively, excluding the corections dus to hedging ransactions (Mobe 30).

15. Provisions
The detail of the balance of this heading In the balance sheels at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2006
trwisl:m for pensions and similar ohligations 23 141 27,348
rovisions for contingent liabilities and commitmenis 143 138
{her provislons 3,760 2456
Total 27,053 28,850




The changes in 2007 and 2006 in the balances of thi

& item in the accompanying balance sheets were as

follows:
Thousands of Euras
Provislons for | Provisions for
Pansions and Centingent Oiher
Similar Liabllities and | Provislons
Obligations | Commitments
Balances at the beginning of 2006 29,357 120 1,538
Bdd-
Additiona charged 1o income for he
year 3,136 16 .
Less-
Reversals - - .
Payments io early retirens (Note 17) 4,557 - -
Amount used (GRE) : :
Balances at the end of 2008 27,348 138 2,468
Add-
Additions charged to income for tha
year 604 T 1,585
Loss-
Fayments to early retirees (Mote 17) 4,178 -
Amount used (632) > 2892 |
Balances at the end of 2007 2314 143 3,768

The year provisions for pensions charged to incomea In 2007 under the headings “Imerest pxpenses and similar
charges”, "Personal expansss” in the Income statement amounted to €738 million, €1 and €136} thousand, respaciively
(€792 million, €1 million and 2,344 thousand respectively in 2008). (Nole 16)

Ferod provisions relating to the heading “Provisicns for confingent exposures and commiments” were recorded under
the neading “Provisions Expenge (MNef)” of the income statemeants,

Also, period provisions fofaling €1.595 relating to the heading “Provisions — Other Provisions” were recorded in 2007
under the headings "Provisions Expenae (Mel)® (€ 931 thousand in 2006),

mants w el

Under the collective labour agreement, Spanksh banks are required fo supplement tho social security benefits received
by amployees or their beneficiary rightholders in the event of refirement (except for those hired after 8 March 1980},
permanent disability, death of spouse or deaih of parent,

The employee wellare system In place al {he Bank supersede and improve the terms and conditiong of the collective
lsbour agreement for the benking industry; the commilments envisaged in the event of retirement, death and disability
cover all employees, including those hired after 8 March 1880. The Bank extemalized all its commitments o gerving and
relired employees pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1099, These commitments are instruments in penslons plans,
insurance contracts with BEVA Seguros, S.A. de Seguros y Reaseguros, which is 98,94% owned by the Banco Bilbao
Vizcaya Argentaria Group. This employee welfare system includes dofine contribution commitments, the amounts of

which are determined, on a case-by-case basgis, as a percentage of certain compensafion andfor as a pre-established
fied amound. Defined benefit commitmants are funded by insurance contracts.

16.1 Commitmeants in Spain

The commitments with persennel for post-employment defined contribution plans have no impact In the accompanying
batance sheets (Note 2.d). In 2007, the Bank has made confribulions to the defined cantribution plang with a charge o
the income staterment amountad 1o €26 thousand (in 2008 the confributions amounted EdVihousand)



16.2. Post-Employmeant bonefit

The mast significant actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2007 and 2008, for the quantification of these
commitments ane as follows:

] - 2007 2006
Moriality lables PERMF 200P FERMF 200F
4,5%IAN corporate 4% IAA corparate bond yield
Discount rate (cumulative anmueal) bond yield curve 2.0% curve 2,0%
Congumer price index [cumulative annual) 2.05% 2,05
At least 3% (depending | Al least 2,8% (depending on
Salary growth rate (cumulative anmual) employea) amipl
First date at which the employess are entifled fo retire or
RN A0w confractually agreed at the individual level the casae of
early retirernent

16.2.1. Public social security system benefit supplement

The Bank has defined bensfit commitments for permanant disabiity and death af current employees and early retirees;
for death of cartain relired employees; and for retirement of cerfain specific groups of current employeas, early retirees

and refired employass (benefits in progress), Thess commilments are hedged through insurance contracts and internal
funds

The defrnad beneflt commitments as of Decembar 31, 2007 and 2008 were a3 follows:

Thougand of Euros
2007 =008
Pensicn commitmanis o relired employees 5,845 5,844
Pengion conlingances in resgect of current employess B6e 698 |
5711 | 6343
Coverage at end of each year:
insurance contracls with redated insurance companios () B, 711 6,343
insurance wilh unralated msurance companies = =
Total 5711 6,343

To cover pension commilments detalled in the previous table, Insurance contracts have been conlracied with insurancs
companies relaled to the Group. These commilments are covered by assets and therafore are pr_Eruunlnd in tha
sccompanying balance sheets. The commilments are recognized in the caplion “Provision for pension and sirmilar
oblgations” and amount of the plan assels to the mentioned insurance comiracts in the caption ° Insurance contract fink
to pensions” of the balance sheet,

In 2007 the Bank did not make any contributions retating to Its defined benefil refirement obiigations. in 2008 these
contributions amounted 1o EUR 6 thousand and were recognisged with a charge to *Personnel Expenses — Confributions
to Extarnal Pansion Funds® the income statement for that year.

16.2.2. Early Retirements

The commilmants to early retirees include the compansation and Indemnities and contribulions 1o exlernal pension funds
payable during the perod of early relirement. The commitments relating to this group of employees afler they have
reached the age of effective retirament are incheded in the employee welfare system.

In 2007 no Bank employees retired eady. In 2008 the Bank offered certain employess the possibility of taking early
ralirament before reaching the age stipulated in the collective labour agreement in force, and five empioyees acoepled
this offer in 2008. The iotal cost of these agreemenis was EUR 2473 thousand, and the relested provisions were
racognised with @ charge to “Provisions (Met) — Additions to Provisions for Pensions and Similar Obligations - Early
Retiraments” in the income statement for 2006,
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Thousand of Euros
2007 2008

Present actuarial value at beginning of the year 20 883 22,285
+ Inferest cost 733 TE5
+ Early rafiremants in the year . 2473
= Payments mads (4,153) (4,482}
+i- Cthear Cahnges . (1
+i- Actuarial losses (gains) (223) (187}
FPrasaent actuarial value at end of the year 17,220 20,883
_Internal provisions {*) 17,220 20,883

The changes in 2007 end 2008 in the present value of the vested obligations for comitments 1o early relirees were as

16.2.3. Post-employment welfare benefits

The Bank has welfare benefil obligations the effects of which extend beyvond the relirement of the employess entilled to
ihe benefits. Thess obligations include cerain cumant employees and retiress, depanding upon the employes group 1o
wihich they balong.

Thie defail of these ocbligations al 31 December 2007 and 2008 I3 as folow,

Thousands of Euros |
- 2007 2008
Post-amploymant wellare benefit obligations to 203 118
redlred employees
Vested post-empioymeant welfare benafit T 24
comingencies in respect of current employees ]
210 142
Funding at the end of seach year:
Internal provisions (Moba 18) 210 :i
210 i

The changes in 2007 and 2008 in the present vaiue of the vested obligation for post-employement welfare banafi

obligations ware a8 follows:
Thouwsands of Euros
& 2007 2006 |
Present actusarial value at the beginning of the year 142 7
+ Intaras! cosl & 7
+ Normal cost for The year 1 2
- Payments made () (108}
+ Oiiros movimientos - 1
- Actuarial losses (gains) BY 67
Fresant actuarial valua at the end of the year 210 142 |

16.3. Summary

Following is & summary of the charges recorded in the 2008 and 2005 income staterments for the post-employment
benafil obligatiens:
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Thousanda of Euros
2007 2006

Interest expense and similar charges:
Intarest cost of pension funds T34 a2
Personnal expenses:
Waifare banefits 1 |
Confribubions o pension funds 25 47
Provislons (net):
Transfers to provisions for pensions and gimilar

obligalicns

Provisions for pensions (138) (130)

Early retiraman - 2473

628 3,183

At December 2007 and 2008 there were no unfunded actuarial gains or losses arising from diferences babwesn the
acluanial assumplions and whal had actually ocourred or, where appropriate, from the effects of changes in the actuarial

assumptions used,

16.4, Other commitments with personnel

Other benefits for aclive employvess are samed and setlled annually, not being necessary some provision, The total cost
of {hea employee welfare benefils provided by the Bank o s currenl employees in the 2007 and 2006 was €124
thousand and €32 million, respaclively, and hese amoumls were recognized with a charge to "Personnei Expansas -
Diher in the accompanying income stalements”,

17. Changes in aquity

The changes in equity in the 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

i Thousands of Eurca
2007 S v Dividands | Valuation
Caplial (Mote [(*}[Note 19 &| Other Equity| Tressury W
i 18] 20) Ingtrismants | Sharas Profit Digtribantad ustme Total
Balances at 1
January 2007 151,043 G5, 244 - - 40822 - 18,87T) 280,332
Revalugiicn gans (lossesh = - - - 2121 ] e
Ilr.Iltlunl'|'hur|!'.|;l1:‘;| I - - (137 (137
Irsamea lax - - - 118 118
Profit for ihe year - - - 48,678 - 49 6TE
Distribution of profi - - = - (40,923 x £ {40,923 |
Balancas at
31 Decomber 2007 151,043 05,244 - 48,678 {7,147} MJ

{*JThe balance of Reserves includes the amounts reporied under *Reserves” and “Share Pramium’” in the ascemaanying balance shoels

Thousands of Euros _I
2006 | Share | Reserves )
Capital (Mole!| [Nobe 19 & |Other Equity| Treasury Dividends | Valuation
18) i) Instruments Sharos Profil Dzt stmnnk Todal
Balances at 1 e T
January 2008 161,043 95,144 - 50,353 - 3.B27 300,207
Revatualion gains (lossoes) - - - - - {17.281) 117,281)
Transters kg incoms
sladement - = - he 4 2 M
Imcorme fac - + - - 6,877 6&rv
Predit for the year - - #0622 40,822
Dislibution of grofit = {50,383) (50,393
Balancas al
| 31 Decambor 2008 161,043 95,244 . - 40,92 . 6,877 280,332

{*] The balance of Resanwes nciudes the smounis repartad wnder "Rasares” and "Share Prermium” in the accompanylng balance sheets.




18. Share capital

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Bank's share capilal amounted to EUR 151,042 883,44 and consisted of
25,131,944 fully subscribed and paid registerad shares of EUR 6.01 par value sach,

There wera no changes in share capital in 2007,

At 31 Decambar 2007, the detall of the Bank's shareholdar struciure was as fallows:

% of Ownership |
Banco Bibao Viecaya Arganiaria, 5.4 S, 2506
Cidessa Uno, 5.L. 0.0004

1040

19, 1]

The balance of this heading in the balance sheet al 31 December 2007 and 2006 amounted to EUR 10,662 thousand.
The Spanish Companies Law expressly permifs the use of the ghare premium balance to increase capfial and
astablishas no spacific restricions as to is usa.

20. Resarves

The breakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance shaats is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2008
Restricted reseres:
Legal resene 30,208 30,208
Restrictad resenve for redenomination of capital in euras 3 3
Umnrestricted resarves:
Vaoluntary and other reserves 54270 54,370
Total 84, 582 B4,582

20.1. Legal reserve

Under tha Companles Law, Spanish enfifies must transfer 10% of net profil for each year to the legal reserve. Thesa
transfers must be mede unlll the balance of this reserve reaches 20% of the share caplial, a limit which had bean
reached by the Bank at 31 December 2007. The legal reserve can be used to increase share capital provided that the
remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the increased share capliial amount.

Excapt as mentionad above, unill the legal reserve axceads 20% of capital, 0 can only be used 1o offset losses, provided
that sufficiend other reserves are not availatde for this purpose.

21. ma

The Bank filed individual corporafion tax returns for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2000, Howavwer, on 10
January 2001, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, 5.4, acquired the remainéng 40% of the Bank's capital, theraby
increasing its holding in the Bank to 100%. Accordingly, from 2002 onwards, the Bank and it subsidiaries have filed
consolidated tax returns as companies in the Group of wiich the Parent s Banco Bilbao Vizcays Argentaria, S.A. On 20
December 2002, the Bank made the relevant notificalion to the Minisiry of Economy and Finance 1o extend its taxation
undar the consolidaled laxation raginve indedinitely, in accordance with curment legistation.

The balance of "Tax Liabilfies® in the accompanying balance sheets includes the liability for the various taxes applicable
1o he Bank, inchsding corporatlon tax on the profit for the yeer net of the corporation iax withholdings and prepaymenis
made in each period. If the provision for corporation tax on profit for the year, less corporation fax withholdings and
prapaymants made and tax refundable from prior yaars gives a nel balance recoivable by the Bank, it s mcluded wunder
"Tax Assals” on the assel side of the accompanying balance shests,

The raconciation of the corporafion lax expense resulling from the application of the standard tax rate lo the corporation
tax axpenss recognised is as follows:



__Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Corparation tax at 35% i 23583
Effect of permanant differencas and other 62 2,91
Adjusiment 1o prior years' corporation tax expense {182} 36)
Corporation tax expense 23, ™ 25,458

The Bank has 2001 and subsegueni years open for review by the tax inspection authoriies for the main 1axes applicabls
b it

Corporation tax and the other faxes relating to 1881, 1992, 1983 and 1004 were regularized following acceptance in
1847 of the tax assesaments Issued by the tex authaorifies a8 a result of the review parfiormad by them. For the contested
iax assessments, & specific provision of EUR 838 thousand (Mote 15), represanting 100% of their amount, was recorded
and included under "Othar Provisions = Provisions” in the accompanying balance shesis,

Algo, In 2002 tax assessments were Issued for 1998 and 1997 when the Bank filad consolidated tax relurns a3 par of the
former Argentaria Group. For the contested tax assessmanis, once the timing nalure of some of the assessments had
been tsken info mccount, and in accordance with the accounting principle of prudence, a provision of EUR 1,770

thousand (Male 15) was recorded at 2007 year-end in the accompanying financial statements for the amounta which
might arise from Ihese assesaments

On 27 February 2008 the Bank was nolified of the initiation of & 1ax audit by the tax authorifies of the various 1axes to
which ils business aclivity is subject and for which the statute of limiations period has nof expired at that date, basically.
corporation 1ax, value added tax, personal income tax or corporalion tax withholdings and the obiigation to declare
irangactions with third parties relafing o 2001, 2002 and 2003

In view of the varying interpretalions which can be made of the tax regulations, the culcome of any fulure tax audits of
thve open years might give rise to cerlain contingent tax liabilities thal cannol be objectivaly quarrti‘ﬁad Hinwvencar, the
Bank's Board of Direclors and ils tax advisors congider that the possbility of these confingent liab#ilios becoming aciual

liabilities is remote and that, In any event, the tax charge which might artse therefrom would not materially affect the
Bank's financial slalaments,

As @ result of the tax raforms enacted In Spain In 2008, including, Inter aka, the modification of the standard income fax
rate, which was sel at 32.5% for 2007 and al 30% for 2008 and subsequent years, Spanish companies have adjustad

thelr deferred fax sssets and lablifles on the basis of tax retes that are expected to apply when they are recovered of
gettiad. As a rasult of the lax reform the expenses tax increase in € 52 thousand.

In addition to the inceme tax recognised In the ncome statements, in 2007 and 2006 the Bank recognised EUR 3,083
thousand and EUR 2,947 thousand, respactively, in equity,

“Deferred Tax Assets” amounted to EUR 18,211 thousand in 2007 and EUR 21,708 thousand in 2008.

22, Residual maturity of transactions

Following is 8 detail, by maturity, of the balances of certain headings in the balance sheet at 31 Decembar 2007:



Thousands of Ewrns

2007 Within 1 Tto 3 dto1Z | 1to b Years |After 5 Years Total
Demand Manth 3 Months Montns

ASSETS

Gash and balances wilh cemral banks 100073 . - - 100,073
Loans and advances to credit institulions 2,180,016 - - 3,650 40,800 2,224 548
Lagns and advances bo customers 322 29 560] 203,902 832 162 2,828,284 3,588 384 TH0Z B04
Dabl insfrurmeanis - 42 AR 133,302 424,016] 2,000,083 2,800,300
Ceher kald-1o-maturily pasols x i = - i -
LIABELITIES

Crepoalts from cantral banks 4,180,000 - ¥ - 4. 180,000
Depasils from credit instiulions 435 104 043 16,333 8,942 114,720 11,658 258 327
Custamer deposds 1825416 163,032 25,184 75,843 4T 500 1,500 1,668 465
Debt-cnritflonten {chading bonde) = 996,530 .| aseaies| 299833  5.Be9EE1
Othar abiilies. with matusity - 56,174 . - " 56,174
23, Fair value of financial nd liabil

Following is a comparison of the camrying amounts of the Bank's financial asssts and lishilities and their respeciive fair

valuas at 2007 year-and.
_r‘ﬁ‘ruunnndl of Euros
Carrying
. t Fair Valug
ASSETS
Cash and balances with ceniral banks 100,073 100,073
Trading portfolio 57377 57,377
Avpilable-for-sale financial assela 2,878,927 2878027
l.oans and recejvables 10,010,656 10,088, 632
Hedging derivalives 162,052 182,052
LIABILITIES
Finamcial lkabllitles held for trading 4T 524 47 524
Financial Eabilifles at amorlisad cost 12,460,314 11,358,031
Hedging darvatives 284,172 254,172

The falr value of “Cash and Balances with Central Banks® is the same that the book value because il is shor-lerms
operations. The fair value of the “Hebd-to-Maturity Invesiments” comespends with the quoted market price. The fair valus
of “Loans and Receivables” and *Financial Liabilities al Amortised Cost® was ostimated by discounting the expected

cash flows using the markeis interest rales at each year-and.
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24, Financial guarantees and drawable by third parties

The memorandum items “Conlingent Liabilities”™ and "Confingent Commitments® in the accompanying balance sheets
include the amounts that would be payable by the Bank on behall of third parties as a result of the commitments
assumed by the Bank in the course of its ordinary business if the parties originally obliged to pay fai fo do so.

The breakdown of the balances of thesa dems at 31 December 2007 and 2008 Iz as follows:

Thousands of Eurcs
2007 2008
Contingent lHabilities-
Colisleral, bank guarantess and Indammitizs B83.657 686 578
883,557 G656, 5TH
Contingent commitments-
Drawabile by third parties:
Public secior 83,638 Bat 567
Oiher resident esctora 53,804 40,872
1,047 442 880,539

Since a significant portion of these amounts will reach malurity withoul any payment obligation materialising for the Bank,
and therefore the aggregate bakance of these commilments cannot be considered as an acthual future regquisernent far
financing or liquidity to be provided by the Bank fo third parties,

Income from guarantes ingtruments is recognised under “Fea and Commission tncoma” in the Income statemant and
calculated by applying the raie esteblished in the releted conlract to the nominal amount of tha guaranios.

25, ar for other own and thi ans

At 31 December 2007 and 2008, the asseis owned by [he Bank earmarked for own obligations amounted to EUR
4,367 601 thousand and EUR 2,737 830 thousand, respectively, These amounts related mainly to asseis provided as
securily lor credil faciliies assigned 1o the Bank by the Bank of Spain.



26, Other contingent assets and liabilities
Al 21 December 2007 and 2008 the Bank had no other conlingent assats or liabilities.
27. Pu nis

Thae financial instruments sold with & repurchase agreemean] are nol derscognised from the balance sheels and the
proceeds from the sale are considered financing from third parties.

Ap 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Bank had neither financial assets soid with a repurchase agreement nor financial
assets purchased under & resale agresmant

T unt riles

The detail of the most eignificant items composing this heading is as Toliows:

“Thousands of Euros
2007 2006
Asgzel rangfers 566, 248 440,827
Deracognised in full from the balance sheet 356,248 440,827
Conditional bills and other securities recelved for collection 21 21
Tolal 355,287 440,848 |

Tha breakdown of the most significant interest and similar income samed by the Bank in 2007 and 2006 is as folkows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2008
Central banks 2,152 1,887
I.oens and advances to credit inshbulions 2,444 6,422
Loans and advances to customern: 50,1498 309,542
Public sactor 338,739 288 044
Resident sector 17423 18,182
MWon-reaident sector 4,033 3716
Diebt nstrements 130,111 147418

Reclification of income ae a resull of hedge

unding (22, TB4) {76,004}
income BES 1,176
Total 452,987 380,842

| gxpense and similar

The breakdown of he batance of fhis heading in the accompanying Income slatements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2008
Bank of Spain and oiher central banks Ba.T23 78,051
Caposits from credil inslitutions 42,245 29,095
Customer deposits 52,79 37960
Debt certificates {inciuding bonds) (Mote 14) 225,322 196,861
Fectification of expanses as a result of hedge accounling (Note 9 20,313 (26,824)
osl attributable fo pension funds (Note 18) 738 T892
ioiher charges (Mote 15) 4 831
Total 421,141 316,798




31. Fee and commission incoms

The breakdown of the batance of this heading In the accompanying statements of income ks a8 Tollows:

Thousands of Euros

2007 2006
Commitmant fees 34 28
Contingent labikias 1,887 1,581
Bank and other guarantees 1,867 1.581
Collection and payment services &8 ™
Marketing of non-banking financial products 4 "]
Other fees and commissions 144 BY
=l Total 1,918 1,774

32. Foe and

The beeakdown of the balance of his heading in the accompanying income statements is as follows:

Thousands of Eurcs
2pay 2006
Brokerage faes on lending and deposit transactions 21 25
Fees and commissions assigned to third parfias 107 131
(Other fees and commissions B5 BO
Total 183 216

. Gains |

labiliti

The delail, by tem, of the balance of this heading in the accomparnying income stabements, is as Tollows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2008
Net gains or losses on sale or measurement of assels
Fmancial assets hald for trading 1,820 3,835
Avallable-for-sale financial assets {1,377 {2,331
Total 243 1,304
The breakdown, by financial msirument, s as follows:
Thousands of Eurcs
2007 2008
Dot instrumanis {1,377 (2.331)
Derivalives 1,820 3,638
Total 243 1,304
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34. Parsonnel expenses
The detal of tha balance of this heading in the accompanying income statements is as folows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 2008
VWages and salaries 112 1812
Social security cosis an 3z
Confributions 1o pengion funds (Note 17) 25 47
Other personnel expenses 162 179
Taotal G610 2,368

In 2007 and 2006, cerlain BBVA Group companies Implemented various corporste programmes for discounted
purchases of shares of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argenlarsa, 5.4, The cost of these programmes is recognised with a
charge 1o "Parsonnel Expenses — Other Personnel Expangas”,

In 2007 the Bank's personnel was integrated into BBVA's workforce. Comsequanily, at 31 Decamber 2007 the Bank had
only one employes,

In 2008 a long-term share-based remuneration plan was implemeanted a1 the BEVA Group aimed al the Group's
managemant leam, Al 31 December 2007, in the case of ihe Bank, the fotal cost of the plan fo be accreed over he term

thereof (three years) i3 not matenal, The cost relating fo 2008 is recognised under “Persosnel Expenses — Cihar
Expansas” in the income siatamant.

35, Other administrative expenses
The breakdown of the batance of this heading in the income statements Is as follows:
Thousands of Euros
2007 2008
Technology and syslems 530 539
Communications 27 22
A dvartising 121 65
Proparty, fixlures and suppiies 10 65
Tanes other than incomse tax 50 43
Other adminisirative expanses 1,373 1.603
Total 211 2237

Al 31 December 2007, the heading "Other Administretive Expenses” of the foregoing detadl included EUR 39 thousand,
redating to fees paid to the Bank's auditor for the audil of the 2007 financial statements.

Algo, the Bank has engaged the external sudilor to provide other services amounting 1o EUR T thousand,

The sarvices provided by our accountants meet the independance regquirements established in Law 4472002, of 22
Mevvemiber, on Measures Reforming the Financial System and in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 adoplad by ihe
EBecurilies and Exchange Commission {SEC), and accordingly they did not include the perfformance of any work that s
incompalible with the audiling funclion,



36, Other gains and other losses

The breakdown of the balances of these headings in the accompanying Income stalements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2007 20056
Losses

Other loasae - E26
- B28

Gains 2
Othar gains 1,644 -
_‘[ﬂlEIl 1|'a“4 -

In June 2007, ae & result of 8 Swupreme Court decigion In favour of the Bank, a credit was made for EUR 1,585 thousand
in relafion to 8 guarantes; however, since the definiive decision has mot yvel been handed down, the Bank has
recognised 8 provision for the same amount under “Provisions® in the accompanying balance sheats (MNole 15).

37. Related-party transactions
37.1. Transactions with Subsidiaries

The balances of the main aggragates in the financial statements arising from the transactions carried out in
2007 and 2006 by the Bank with Group companies, which consist of ordinary business and financial
fransactions carried oul on an arm’s-length basis, are as follows:

| Thousands of Euras
2007 2006
Assals
Loans and advances 1o aredil instiufions 2,206,855 3,850
Available-for-sale financial assats 4,145 11474
Darivatives 83,835 67 680
2,308,038 B3,084
Liakilities
Deposils from credit Institutions 165,073 473,578
Customer deposita 166,648 219,972
Derivatives 127,300 126,254
Dther liabilities 353 .
458 019 822,204
Off-balance-sheaat ibems
Conlingant Eabilities 823, 7aT 831,828
623,787 631,839
Income statement
Incame 30,863 41,337
Expenses 51,031 23,572

Al 31 Decamber 2007 and 2008, the nollonal amount of the futures transactions arranged by the Bank with (e main
Group companias mantionsd above amounted to EUR 7,192,252 thousand and EUR 7,139,528 thousand, respectively.

In eddition, as part of its normal aclivity, the Bank has entered into agreements and commitments of various types with
shareholders of subsidianies and agsociates, which heve no material effacts on the financial stalements,



37.2. Transactions with key personnel of the Bank

The informafion on the remuneration payabla to key members of the Bank's Board of Direciors and the Group's

Managemant Committes is defalled In Mote 38,

Al 31 December 2007 and 2008 no credils or loans had bean granted o the members of the Bank's Board of Directors,

A1 31 Decembar 2007, the accounts payable o the Bank's direclors amounted to EUR 14 thousand.

37.3. Other related-party transactions

There were no other significant relaled-parly fransaciions,

8. Ramu

Mana nt

The remunerafion paid o the non-executive members of the Board of Direclors during 2007 is indicaled below. The
figuras are given individually for each non-executive director and itemisad in thousand euros.

Charge

José Ramoén Guerediaga Mendiola ™)

Rita Barbard Nola
Luia Escauriaza lhaflez (**)
Pedro Fontana Garcla (%)

lgnacio Marco-Gardoqui lbafiex
Ramdn Hemera Cial {*)
Ahraro Aresti Aldasoro %)

Rafaal Varela Marinez ()

President
Direchor
Crirachor
Director

Direstor
Diracior
Direcior
Direslor

Concept

Aftendance
feas

Atlendance
fees

_Amonunt

Total

{*} Mambars of the managemen! team of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
Thay do not eam any remuneration in their capacity as directors of Banco de Crédiio

Local de Espafia, 5.A,

{(**) Members of the management team of Banco Bifbeo Vizcaya Argentaria, 5.4
who fook sarly retirement. They do not earmn any remuneration in helr capacily as
direciors of Banco de Crédilo Local de Espafia, 5.A.

A% 31 December 2007 and 2005 the Bank did not have any pension ar life ingurance obligations to the members of the

Board of Direciors.
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Pursuant to Adlicle 127 of the Spanish Corporations Law infreduced by Law 2672003 of July amending Securities Markat
Law 2411868 of July, and the revised Corporations Law, in order to reinforce the transparency of lisied companies, sef

forth below are the companies engaging in an activily that is |

the corporate purpose of BEVA, in which constitutes the
Board of Direclors have a direct or Indirect ownersh

adminisirative functions al these companies,

dentical, similar or complementary fo that which constilutes
corporate purpose of the Bank, in which the members of the
Ip interest. Mone of the directors discharge executive or

Ownership Interest
S Company oo u:ﬁnﬂ;m g oo
Interast

SCH 26,266 DIRECT =

D. lgnacie Marco-Gardogul POPLULAR BOO DIRECT -
BEVA 26T, 313 DIRECT .

0. Abvaio Aresti Akdasoro BBVA 118,853 DIRECT
BEWVA 3,742 INCHRECT Exacutive
BEWA 12,800 CIRECT =

. Lule Escauriaza |bafiez SCH 12,850 MRECT -
BNP 1,600 MMRECT -

0. Ramén Herrara Cial BEWA 2121 DIRECT Executive

[ BEVA 15,675 DIRECT Executive

C. Pedro Fonlana Garcla
BEva 250,000 INDIRECT
SCH i DIRECT : -

D*. Rita Barberd Nolla BCO, VALENCIA 453 DIRECT 2
BEVA 1022 IRECT -

D. Rafael Varela Mantinez BBVA 33,108 DIRECT 2
EBVA 12,000 DIRECT -

D, Jogdé Ramdn Guesrmdiaga Mendiola
BEWVA 330,000 INDIRECT |

Alse, in accordance with the above mentioned Law, set forth below are the aclivities carried on as Independent
professionals or as employees, by the various members of the Board of Directors thal are identical, similar or
complementary 1o the activity that consfitutes the corporate purpose of Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, 5.4,

4 Activity Company Through Which the Position or Function at
Director Carried On Activity ls Carded On the Company Concerned
Jood m*:““d'“““ Directar BEVA Bancomer [*) Director
{*} BEVA Group company
44, | on on

These consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis of IFRSs, as adopbed by the European Uinion,
Certain accounting practices applied by the Group thal conform with IFRSs may not conform with other ganerally
sccopled accounting principles
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BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR 2007



Trangtation of a report orfgimally fsswed fn Spanish. In the ovent
of a discropancy, the Spanish-language version prevails,

INTRODUCTION

Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, 5.4, ("the Bank" or “BCL") Is a private=law entity, integrated In the
Banco Bllbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group (“the BBVA Group”). Both are subject to the rules and
regulations applicable to banks operating in Spain.

The Bank is included in the Institutional Banking Unit of the BEVA Group and focuses mainly on
providing financing to the public sector In Spain and to the agencles and subsidiaries thereof, for
which end it has a network of 55 branches integrated In the BEBVA commercial network located in the
major clties of the autonomous communities in Spain.

However, in view of the nature of its business and the characteristics of s loans, the Bank performs
the functions of financial management and management of structural on-balance-sheer risks
independently from its parent bank. This organisation enabies the Bank to be more highly specialised
a5 a provider of long-term finance to local and awonomous governments within a model of integral
relationship banking with customers, without foregoing the advantages of funding in capital markets
contributed by the quality of its assets,

The firancial Information included in this directors' report s presented in accordance with the criteria
set forth in Bank of Spain Circular 472004,

ECONOMIC CLIMATE IN 2007

In 2007 global growth stood at around 5%, which represents the fifth successive year of expansion.
However, as the year passed the moderate growth of the developed countries became evident, while
the emerging economlies maintained solid growth rates, increasing their contribution to the dynamism
of global business activity.

The financial markers played a leading role in 2007. In the first few months of the year long-term
interest rates increased and the stock markets performed positively. However, as from June the guality
of certaln credit derivatives began to be questioned, leading 1o a credit squeeze, which resulted in a
hike in interbank rates, a drop in the volume of commercial paper and bond issues, a significant
change In the assessment of the risk of numerous assets and falls on the stock markets. Also, the rise
in the price of oil and agricultural raw materlals set inflation on an upward trend. Agalnst this
backdrop, the central banks took measures by providing liquidity to the system. OFf particular note
throughout the process was the relatively sound performance of the financial markets of the emerging
countries,

in the US, despite the downturn in the residential sector, year-end growth attained levels of around 2%,
Official interest rates held steady at 5.25% untll September and, following successive drops, bottomed
out at 4,25% in December,

In Europe economic growth stood at arcund 2.6% In 2007, based on Internal demand and dymamic
Investing. The European Central Bank continued to ralse interest rates to achieve a rate of 4% in june
which was then maintained until the end of the year, In such a context, the Spanish economy
performed notably well, with growth atl around 3.8%, although signs of a slowdown did appear and
became more obvious as the year prograssed, especially in the housing market,

LENDING TO AUTONOMOUS COMMUNITY AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES

According 1o the latest available data (at 30 September 2007}, the overall indebtedness of Autonomous
Community governments decreased by 1.26% In the first nine months of 2007 toc EUR 57.05 billlon at
30 September 2007, compared with growth of 3.50% for the year-ago period. Lending to local



government corporations was lower at EUR 28.76 billion at 30 September 2007, 6.43% up on the

previous year,

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES OF REGIONAL 30 Seprembar 2007 30 September 2006
AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS i sw._.;;inn = 5 na:g;:lun
Local governments 28.76 6.4 27.02 H.B
AUloNoOMmoUs CoOMMUniy JovErnments 5705 1.5 5623 3.5
TOTAL B5.81 21 §3.25 5.2

Source: Bank of Spain Statistical Gazette, Figures in tables 13-B and 1 3-C in biillons of euros.
There are many reasons for this situation, the mast notewaorthy being as follows:

1. The trend In recent yvears in Spain’s economic situation, with a significant increase in local and
regional government savings, boosted autonomous community and local government finances.

¢, The Budget Consolidation Plans between the central government and each autonomaous community
government continue to follow a zero deflcit policy, although the continuing need of the
autonomous communities to finance their health systems somewhat increased the use of credit
facilities,

3. The financial regulatory framework applicable to local government corporations contributed to the
containment of their overall Indebtedness.

A% regards competition in this market, the macroeconomic environment once again had a significant
effect. In 2007 low interest rates continued to put pressure on margins: in addition, the increase n
lending flows from financial institutions to local governments, - which are lower risk -, continued to
be consplcuous, bringing with it a sharp increase In competition for awards of transactions for
financing investments In the sector,

Billigns of Ewros
WAHNET SHARE 30 Septembes 2007 300 Sentember 2008

Volume 5 il %
COMMERCIAL BANES 21.8 421 22.2 44,0
SAVINGS BANKS 12.3 13.8 11.8 3.4
100 ARD OTHERS 1.5 3.0 .4 2.8
OTHER 18,1 5l 15.0 9.8
Total 51.8 100,0 0.4 100.0

Source: Bank of 3paln Statistical Cazerte.

ACTIVITY OF BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, 5.A. IN 2007
INSTITUTIONAL BUSINESS
Loans and receivables

Total loans and credits to the sector amounted to EUR 1,504 million, 64.8% of this amount related to
long=term loans.



S

Customer flows and funds

The average balances of depositors grew by 5.4% compared with 2006 to EUR 2,006.8 miliion, of which
EUR 226 million were time deposits,

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

In 2007, BCL's financial management was a basic plilar of the Bank's activities, both for its contribution
to raising financing and for its contribution to the generation of earnings through the management of
the Bank's monetary assets portfolio.

Due to the nature of its business, the structure of BCL's balance sheer requires a significant valume of
wholesale funding. The customer segment the Bank serves mainly requires loans and credits and holds
scant amounts on deposit. Accordingly, other funds must be attracted through funding In the capital
markets and for this purpose BCL has a Fized-Income Securities Programme for EUR 4,000 million.
This programme has been individually rated by the main rating agencies, which granted it the same
ratings as those granted to BEVA (Aal from Moody's, AA- from 54P and AA- from Fitch),

Millljoms of Euros Wariatkan
VARIATION I SOURCES OF FUNDIRG HIOF 006 Absokito 5
Copdip instigutions:
BEWA Croup 164.51 47250 [(Z08.0T} (65,19
Inskibtute de Crédite Oficial 16.50 17.83 {1.33) Dt 1]
Rank ol Spain ERE iR I, E00.00 2,380.00 1322z
ElH ard EUSF EEAY 67.33 LR x| {1E 15
s 20,87 18398 0.8 LR 1]
Valuation adjustmenis T.15 2.21 4,94 223,53
Dby cemificates Boclusding beonds:
Aonids and dobentunes auistanding 5.HED.O6 5,890.93 i0.97) (0o
Valuaian adjustments LE.58 7429 {15811 (2100}
CLEIR T deppglis:
BOL iMeraational Finence Lid, §1i7.03 147.20 {3017 {20.500
Other customer deposits 1,551.46 228275 #31.25 (V&80
Walyatlon adjustments $0.57 76.58 (26.02) {33,599

Noteworthy in terms of wholesale financing In 2007 was the 19-month term senior debt Issue
launched in july 2007 amounting to EUR 1,000 million which was admitted to trading on the Spanish
AlAF Fixed-income Securities Market,

BCL 1s the only recurring Issuer of this type of bond in Spain, and has become a benchmark in the
European covered bonds market. In view of the demand for these securities and the levels of funding
that are obtained, territorial bonds will continue to be in the future one of the basic pillars of BCL's
long-term stable funding policy,

For short-term financing, the Bank continued to participate in the European Central Bank's periodic
monetary policy transactions and actively managed the portfolio of assets eligible to be used as
security for these rransactions. At 31 December 2007, the total amount of assets eligible 1o be used as
securlty was approximately EUR 4,200 miillon,



RISK MANAGEMENT

BCL's risk management |s considered an Intrinsic part of its banking business and a source of its
competitive advantage.

The risk function has been designed as a supplier of management models that enable the Bank 1o
reach the necessary balance between the assumption of risk and the expected return on the business,
and I5s almed at maximising shareholder return and value creation,

The Bank, as a member of the BBVA Group, participates in the Group's global risk management system
which |5 based on three components: a corporate risk management structure; a setr of tools, circuits
and procedures that make up the different risk management systems; and an internal control system.
Following Is a summary of each one of them:

Corporate risk management struciure.
The Bank Is integrated in the same structure as the BEVA Group, which 1s summarised as follows:

« The Board of Directors of BBVA is the most senior body that determines the Bank's risk policy and
approves any non-delegated transactions.

= The Lending Commitiee, which reports o the Board of Directors of BBVA, 15 a speclalised body
whose functions include, inter alia: evaluation of the general risk policies and establishment of
limits by type of risk, management resources, procedures and systems, structures and processes;
approval of Individual or group risks that may affect the Bank's solvency, in keeping with the
established delegation system.

# The Technical Transactions Committee analyses and approves, where appropriate, the financial
transactions and programmeas that are within its level of authorisation, and refers any transactions
exceeding the scope of Its delegated powers 1o the Lending Committes.

« The Asset-Liabllity Committee (ALCO) is the body responsible for actively managing the Bank's
structural llquidity and interest rate risks, and Its core capital,

Tools and clrcuits.

The Bank has provided itself with a customer rating tool, Territorlal Institutions Ratings. This tool,
developed on the basis of well-founded criteria, knowledge, experience and statistics, is the
cormerstone of the risk acceptance process. It is applied to all customers and transactions In the
segment from the branches that make up the Bank's network.

in addition, the risk acceptance areas of the reglonal offices have been strengthened through the
provision of suitable means to carry out risk acceptance tasks. Delegation of powers is carried out on
the basis of the isorisk curve, .e. on the basis of the rating assigned o the customer,

As regards the structural liquidity and interast rates risks, limits have been set 1o potential losses on
the basis of the various risks Incurred; determination of possible impacts of the structural risks on the
Income statement and setting of limits and alerts that ensure the Banlk's liguidity.

Asset and |lability management

As a general principle BCL manages its assets and liabilities autonomously and focuses its efforts on
the attainment of various targets: stable financing of the balance sheet by expanding and diversifying
its funding sources, minimising calls for financing from the Parent bank, maintaining its credit ratings
and minimising the cost of financing.

The Bank's asset and liability management Is carried out within the framework of the criteria and
exposure limits set for interest rate and Hguidity risk exposure by the Bank's Bpard of Directors. The

Asset-Liability Committee [ALCO) is responsible for the management of the Bank's assets and
liabilitias.



The Commitiee meets every month to review the Bank's exposure to these risks and makes the
decislons considered appropriate at any given time based on expected trends in market variables.

Liquidity risk

The Bank alms to orderly replace its existing liabilities upon maturity, while minimising variations In

wholesale funding. Accordingly, in 2007 the Bank took several actions aimed at extending and
diversifying its funding sources.

Every month the ALCO reviews liguidity gaps and compllance with the established short-term limits
and ensures that medium- and long-term funding needs in the whaolesale markets are compatible with
the Bank's capacity to ralse funding in the capital markets. Also, the Bank is included In the BBVA

GCroup’s liquidity risk measurement systems and follows the guidelines laid down by the Group in this
area.

The range of guarantees accepted In Bank of Spain monetary policy transactions was extended and

access to privileged funding sources with new guarantee structures was maximised (EIB, Council of
Europe ...}

interest rate risk

Interest rate risk llmits are established in terms of the impact that an adverse variation in interest rates

might have on the economic value of the Bank and of the effect thar such variation would have on the
Bank's net interest Income in the following twelve months.

Both limits are set so that an unexpected adverse varlation in interest rates would only have a limited
material Impact on the profit and market value of equity of the Bank.

Foreign currency risk

Civen the purely domestic nature of 113 business, It is Bank policy not to hold open foreign currency
risk positions.

Credit risk in market activity

Credit risk arising on transactions with other financial insttutions Is measured differently depending
on wheather on- or off-balance-sheet transactions are Involved, BCL Is included in the BBVA Group's
systems for measuring risks arising from both types of transaction, whereby the overall risk to each

counterparty, the distributlon by Group unit and the risk assumed on each transaction are determined
in a centralised way,

BALANCE SHEET

The Bank's balance sheets at 31 December 2007 and 2006, are as follows (n millions of euros)



Variation
BALAMNCE SHEET 2007 2006 Absolube 3

Cash and balances with central
barks 100.073 223,373 {123.300) (35,200
Financial assets held for trading 57.377 30.243 27.134 Ba.r2
Available-for-sale financial assets 2678927 2.619.323 59.604 2.28
Loans and receivables 10.019.655 8,465.001] 1,554,564 18.36

Loans and advances fo credit

fnstitutions 2227978 41.202 2,186,776 -

Loans and advances fo

customers SFRLEF? B 423.357 (B3 1. 6800 {750

Other Anancial assets - 2532 . 532 ffag.ool
Hedging derivatives 164,407 164,407 17.645 10.73
Mon-current asiets held for sale
Investments - 1.813 (1.933) (100.00)
T I 5.711 6.343 (0.632) (9,96)
Tanglble assets 25.143 25.687 (0. 544) (2.12)
Tax assefs 18:.211 £1.708 (3.497) (16.11)
Prepayment and accrued Income 0,295 0. 506 (0,11} (3.59)
Other assers 0.043 4,940 {4.897) (99.13) |
Total assets = llabilitles 13,087,487 11,563.354 1,524.133 13.18
Financial liabilities held for trading 47.524 15.895 31,629 198,99
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  12,469.314 10,893.681 1.575.633 14.46
Hedging derivarives 254.172 338.070 (83.898) (24,82}
Provisions 27.053 25,950 {2.897}) {967}
Tax liabilities - 3841 (3.841) (100,00}
Accrued expenses and deferred
income 0,604 1.362 (0.758) [55.65)
Other liabilities 0.004 0.223 {0.219) =
Valuation adjustments (7.147 G.E77) {0.270) (3.93)
Capital and reserves 246.287 246.287 - -
Prafit 49.676 40.992 B.754 21.39

The Bank's Total Assets at 31 December 2007 amounted to EUR 13,087 million, a increase of EUR
1,524 million with respect to 2006, due mainly to the increase in lending However, business volume,
Le. the sum of loans and total customer funds managed amounted o EUR 15,752 million.a decrase of
6. 7% compared with 2006.

The main caption of the balance sheet, Loans and receivables amounted to EUR 7,792 million, a
decrease of EUR 632 millions with respect last year amount.

As regards liabilities, on-balance-sheet funds relating to the business with customers amounted o
EUR 1,852 million, a decrease of 1 9% with respect last year,

Funds from wholesale funding obtained on capital markets, Le. the sum of non-resident sector

deposits and debt certificates (including bonds), amounted to EUR 6,116 milllon a similar figure to
thar of 2006,



(Amounts in millions of euros)

DEC 07 DEC 06 % variation

FINARMCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST 12,469 10,894 14.5%

Central banks and credit Institutions 4,445 2,380 a6.8%

Resident sector deposits 1,852 2,287 =19.0%

MNon-resident sector deposits 167 220 -24. 1%

Debt certificates (including bonds} 5,349 5,965 -0.3%

Cther financial llabilities 56 42 33.8%
Memaorandum items:

Activity with customers 1.852 2287 -159.0%

Wholesale funding a,lle 6,185 =1,12%
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Millions of Euros Variation
CAPITALISATION gﬂﬂ? 2006 | Absolute %

BANK OF SPAIN REQUIREMENTS
Risk-welghted assets 2,561.55 2,337.61 223,95 958
Eligible capital 240.75 242.1B (1.43)] {0.59)
Cushion 138,29 148.67 (10.38) | (6.98)
EANE OF SPAIN RATIO 9.33 10,22 (0.90) [ (8.80)
TIER | 9.33 10,23 (0.90) | (8.80)
BI5 RATIO 9,39 10.35 {0.96) | (9.23)

At 31 December 2007, the Bank's capltal ratio calculated by Bank for International Settlements (BiS)
rules was 9,.39% compared with 10.35% at 2006 vear-end. Tier | capital was 9.33% compared with the

10.23% of the previous year.

The Bank's eligible capital at 31December 2007, was EUR 240.75 million. This amount represents a
cushion of EUR 138.22 milllon with respect to minimum capltal requirements.

At 31 December 2007, the Bank had no treasury shares or shares of its Parent, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, 5.4, and had not performed any treasury share transactions In the year,




P

EARNINGS
INCOME STATEMENT Millions of Euros Warlathon
2007 2006 Absolute ,
—_INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME 492 987 | 300842 | 102,145 36.13
INTEREST EXPENSE AND SIMILAR {421.141) | (315.799) | 105.342 33.36
CHARGES
NET INTEREST INCOME 71848 | 743 | (3197 (4.26)
FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 1.918 1.774 0,144 8.12
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 0.193) | {0.2186) 0.023 | (10.65)
GAINS/LDSSES ON FINANCIAL 0.243 1.304 M.061) | (81.37)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EXCHAMNGE DIFFERENCES 0.003 0,005 (0.002) | (40.00)
GROSS INCOME 73817 77.910 (4.093) (5.25)
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1.371 1.343 0,028 7.08
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2.721) | (4.703) 1.982 | (42.14)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 0.707) [ (0.721) 0.014 (1.94)
AND WRITE-DOWN OF ASSETS
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.030) | (0.047) 0.017 | (3617
NET OPERATING INCOME 71.730 73.782 2.052 (2.78)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 1.479 |  (3.417) "4.806 | (143.28)
- Loans and recelvables 1.934 2,363 | _(0.429) {1B8.15)
- Investments {0.455) {5.780) 5.325 {92.13) |
EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT [net) 1.644 | (0.626) 2.270 | (362.62)
PROVISIONS {net) {1.466) |  (2.359) 0.893 | (37.86)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 73.387 | g7.380 6.007 8.97
INCOME TAX 2371 [ 26.458) 2747 | (10.38)
" PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 49,676 40.922 B.754 21.29

I 2007 net Interest income amounted to EUR 71.846 million a decrease of 4.26% compared with the
previous yaar,

Profit before tax amounted to EUR 73.387 million, which represents 4 decrease of B.92% as compared
with 2006, Net of the estimated corporation tax, profit for the year amounted to EUR 49,676 million,
21.39% down on 2006,

With thesa results, the return on average total assets (ROA) was 0.42% and the return on average
equity (ROE) was 20, 2%.

ORGANISATION AND RESOURCES
Structures and organisation

In order 1o ensure the uniformity of administrative support procedures, under the Wholesale Banking
Project the administration of BCL's loan transactions was included in the new Madrid Operating Centre,

thereby supporting operational risk control through the incorporation of task- or function-based
processes,

As a result of the Inclusion of the derivatives and options trading operations in the ABACD application,
the integration of all the Treasury Department's back-office operations In the BEVA Group's
information systems was substantlally completed, including automation of the existing manual

interfaces and automatic adaptation of the accounting information generated to the new standards in
force,
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Simitarly, In keeping with the Croup’s new organisation, management of BCL's Operational Risk tools
was integrated in the Business and Corporate Banking Division,

OUTLOOK

The Bank will focus its strategy for the coming years on increasing specialisation in its segments and
diversifying the products and services to be sold to its traditional customer segment and related
groups through BBVA and the single network., This will generate new revenue flows supplementing
those derived from lending to local and regional government, through which the Bank expects to
obtain growth exceeding that from the pure lending business, which is currently subject 1o budget
control measures affecting the public sector,

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The BBVA Group considers innovation to be a strategic priority and a key to growth and differentiation.

Accordingly, It has launched an ambitious Innovation and Transformation Plan of which innovation 1s
the driving force.

The BBVA Croup's business units are responsible for implementing their innovation plans and a wnit

for Innovation and Development was created that |5 developing projects based on three lines of
activity:

1. Mew methods of marketing and communication: as a result of identifying the changes that are
taking place In soclety, the BBVA Croup has inltiated a plan to establsh new customer
relationship and communication models.

2. Mew digital businesses: the BEVA Group is developing new services that will enable it wo extemnd
itz relatdonship with consumers, To Implement the new services, emphasis s being placed on
two channels; on the one hand, extending the Bank's internal capacities and, on the other,
building on the attributes and values assockated with our brand,

3. Mew methods of Internal cooperation: the objective is to include new tools and modes of
internal relationship to improve the Bank's efficiency and benefit teamwork and
communication.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPALCT

At 31 December 2007, the Bank's financial statements did not present any item that should be
included in the environmental information report required by Ministry of Economy and Finance Order
of 8 October 2001.

REPORT ON THE ACTMITY OF THE CUSTOMER CARE SERVICE AND CUSTOMER OMBUDSMAN
DEPARTMENT

Pursuant to Ministry of Economy and Finance Order ECO/734 /2004, of 11 March 2004, on customer
care and customer eambudsman departments and services at financial institutions and as a member of
the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group, the Bank formalised its adhesion to the Rules on
Consumer Ombudsman and the Customer Care Service of BEVA, and appointed as Customer
Ombudsman the same person as that designated by BBVA at any glven time.

The 2007 Activity Report evidences the absence of complaints or claims identified in this Customer
Care Service, and this fact is valued positively as it is construed that customers had no need to make
use of this service,
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INFORME DE AUDITORLA DE CUENTAS ANUALES

A bos Acclonisiay de
Bance de Crédito Local de Espadla, 5.A.

|, Memos auditndo ks cuentas anuales de Banco de Cridila Local de Espafia, S.A. (en lo sucesivo, “el Banco™),
que comprenden el balance de situacion al 31 de diciembre de 2006 v Ia coenta de pérdidas y gananciag, el
estado de Mujos de efectivo, el estado de combios en el patrimonio nelo y k. memoria cormespondicnles al
clercicio anual lerminado en dicha fecha, cuyn formulacién s responsabilidad de los Administradores del
Banco, Nuestra responsabilidad es expresar una opinidn sobre las citadas cuentas anvales on su conjunio,
hasada en ¢l trabajo realizado de acuerdo con ks normas de auditoria generalmente acepladas, que requicren
el examen, mediante la realizacion de pruchas selectivas, de la evidencia justificativa de lus cuentas anuakes y
la evaluacitn de su presentacian, de los principios contables aplicados y de las estimaciones realizadas.

2. De acverdo con la legistacion mercantil, los Administrdores del Banco presentan, a electos cormparativos,
con cada una de las paridas del balance de situackin, de ln cuenta de pérdidas y gunancias, del estado de
Nujos de efectivo, del estado de cambios en el patrimonio neto ¥ de la memoria, ademds de ks cifras del
gjercicio 2006, las cormespondientes ol cjercicio anterior. Con fecha 30 de marzo de 2006 cmitinwos mestro

informe de auditorls scerca de kns cuentas anuales del ejercicio 2005, en el que expresamos una opinidn
favorable.

1. Las operaciones del Banco se efectian dentro de In gestién del Grupo Banco Bilban Vizeayn Argenlaria,
origindntose los saldos y transacciones con sociedades vinculadas que se indican cn la memorin Las cuentas

anuabes adjuntas, que se presentan en cumplimiento de la normativa vigente, deben inferpretarse en esle
contexio,

4. En nuesira opinidn, las cuenias anuales del ejercicko 2006 adjuntas expresan, en lodos los aspectos
significatives, In imagen fiel del patrimonio ¥ de la situacidn financicra del Banco al 31 de diciembre de 2006
y de los resultados de sus operaciones, de los camblos en sy potrimonio pelo y de sus Nujos de efectiva,
comespondientes ejercicio anm) terminado en dicha fecha y conticnen la informacion necegaria y suficienie
para s inlerpretacion y comprension adecuada, de conformidad con los principios y normas contables
contenidos en la Circular 472004, que guardan uniformidad con los aplicados ¢l ejercicio anterior,

5. [l informe de gestion adjunto del ejercicio 2006 contiene las explicaciones que los Adminisiredores
consideran oportunas sobre la situncidn del Banco, I evolucion de sus negocios y sobre olros asuntos y 1o
forma parte integrante de las cuentas anuales. Hemos verificado que la informacion contable gue contiene ¢l
citndu Informwe de gestin concuerda con ln de las coentas anumles del ejercicio 2006, Muestiro trabajo como
auditeres se limita o ln verificacion del informe de gestién con el aleance mencionado en este mismo pirrafo
¥ no incluye b revisidn de informacion distinta de ka oblenida o partir de los regisiros contables del Banco,
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